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11. TayaNWNNITRUNRALY

11.1 msnagaunIsRu

9ael . WL
2556 2555 2554
Auning
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@“nuﬁmuﬁmmﬂﬁq% 403 1,645,947.46 87.86%  1,654,839.57 93.09%  1,300,059.62  91.74%
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nindausanII1e - 4N 11,882.51 0.63% 14,845.34 0.84% 1,888.49 0.13%
gnuﬁ%u 9,899.16 0.53% 7,466.51 0.42% 10,169.10 0.72%
fip 21ANIHATeUNINT 413 31,147.66 1.66% 32,772.37 1.83% 32,678.30 2.31%
Aunndn#Ruldsannssinnyd 10,123.36 0.54% 0 0 0 0
Rushinsuiang - Annseynivu 120.00 0.01% 120.00 0.01% 120.00 0.01%
sandumindladvauienau 123.11 0.01% 118.11 0.01% 1,997.26 0.14%
Runsndsan 1,873,401.32 100.00%  1,777,750.48  100.00%  1,417,099.77  100.00%
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Rufszezeny 517,502.09 27.62% 630,360.00 35.32% 47323161  33.40%
AU SRl Fsannssiniiny 4,855.06 0.26% 4,998.27 0.28%
wiiAusIN 1,194,775.90 63.78%  1,308,201.06 73.29% 943,04555  66.55%
AurRednaRY
Aoiugarnvuansioy 21,508.71 1.15% 21,508.71 121% 21,508.71 1.52%
ﬁumﬁmﬁmﬂLL@:SﬂﬂﬁﬂizLLﬁq 594,776.00 31.75% 410,000.00 22.97% 410,000.00  28.93%
fnlsazax - d1seemunguang 17,013.46 0.91% 14,721.03 0.82% 12,851.36 0.91%
s @) azax - Gelalidnass 45,327.24 2.42% 30,470.97 1.71% 29,694.15 2.09%
AIUDINNDUUTIN 678,625.42 36.22% 476,700.72 26.71% 474,054.22  33.45%
sela
ABNNAAIN ”m;meﬁw‘%aﬁi”ui 176,784.11 77.37% 154,159.83 75.65% 107,544.02  71.54%
paninug younaneteln 5,697.00 2.49% 6,599.46 3.24% 6,350.31 4.22%
peniEsL 496.30 0.22% 782.79 0.38% 1,015.55 0.68%
meldau 45,517.15 19.92% 42,234.58 20.73% 3540863  23.56%
selasan 228,494.56 100.00% 203,776.66  100.00% 150,318.51  100.00%
A lgans
Aldanelunsalinauuaiismsg 87,740.02 38.40% 79,094.86 38.82% 73,627.98  48.98%
pldane Tunnediintu 68,727.20 30.08% 63,523.84 31.17% 40,081.08  26.66%
uﬁmﬁmzqm 9,981.55 4.37% 7,801.23 3.83% 1,163.35 0.77%
w‘ﬁqzy 4,116.01 1.80% 3,382.82 1.66% 6,079.30 4.04%
MRl 12,081.08 5.29% 12,342.00 6.06% 7,791.62 5.18%
A ldanesaN 182,645.86 79.93% 166,144.75 81.54% 128,74333  85.65%
ls (@anw) g 45,848.70 20.07% 37,631.91 18.46 2157518  14.35%
0.1087 0.0918 0.0526

mlsgmBsiaiu (i)

151 AETURANNIMTEAATI S8R (HUNTW)

3euLsEantl 2556



11.2 ANFINLNTEUALSUAR

YiLael . WULN
2556 2555 2554
NIZUARUAAANNANITHALTELIY
fAls neun#Ruld 57,929,778.30 49,973.91 29,366.80
sensUFunsgnuninlegniiiluduansu (dne)
AABNIIAN LaYIIEsnEFRane 20,123.19 17,561.72 14,078.47
vilgeysuau -1,829.24 -1,333.96 -943.20
Mldzzg[y 4,116.01 3,382.82 6,079.30
wﬂmﬁm:m 9,981.55 7,801.23 1,163.35
Anlsannnissnuinemineau -2,009.43 -921.75 -811.60
IAYUANNNITUNENINETRUTANTUE 7,942.30 6,016.19 6,859.83
IIANUANNNIIABLAMNINEIRUIBN9E) 3,704.68 -291.99 125.96
dszrnnunisuadsetariniineuy 1,174.09 752.59 653.43
m@mﬁm’m 68,727.20 63,523.84 40,081.08
fls (@1mnw) annasiiunuiaunaatunlas
TuRuyumyuEen 169,807.79 146,464.60 96,653.42
@ﬂuﬁmu@”ﬂ;aﬂ,ﬁw%@ (L‘ﬁlﬁu) ANAY - 55,851.64 -418,186.54 - 465,143.37
Qnuﬁmmz@mwwmﬂ (fixE) amad -135.60 3,449.34 -11,815.00
RuliiTusvazenn (R )amas 2,993.46 2,696.31 2,413.81
Gu’l,ﬁﬁjiml,riﬁﬂmiﬁlﬁ fndind (LA anag 0 0 0
nINgausanisIne (s ﬁ % U) AAAY 22,152.58 22,274.96 6,968.55
zﬁumwwmumuau (i3 amad 4,088.88 3,961.65 5,524.74
RunasesiLiiaEy (anad) 0 0 1,217.58
uﬁaumwﬁﬂuﬁ'u (i3 amad 129.59 958.28 1,944.71
RUAATL (ang) AINN1TATLTIKENU 143,185.06 - 238,381.40 -362,235.56
’ﬂ"]?;lﬁﬂm‘]dil/?;l -68,783.73 - 64,266.74 - 39,823.78
A EFRuls - 14,708.58 -8,282.78 - 4,269.20
Ruangnsliun (141y) anfanssusidueu 59,692,748.28 -310,930.92 - 406,328.54
NITUARUANIINNANITHAINU
Gumfahﬂiumi%@ﬁumnu%mm - 100,000.00 0 0
Ruaniuainnisinmiegilnsal 3,218.13 5,646.61 4,651.75
ﬁuam@"miumi‘%‘ﬂqﬂﬂﬁﬁ -4,589.74 -11,129.72 -12,481.51
RuUlINEUIANT - NTEyNiU (e anas 0 0 -20.00
Ruangnalaun (141) aanfanssuaanu -101,371.61 -5,483.11 -7,849.76
nsziaRugAaNAANIILd AV R [T (anav)
Rudnifuinyduasuitnanniunitu -1,949.88 13,296.37 4,100.45
Ruifuszazdudu -12,000.00 52,000.00 45,000.00
RuiBiuszazenaiiaiy (aaas) -101,072.00 291,474.40 379,200.40
Ruilunaane -28,700.00 -36,900.00 -16,400.00
FURUATY 184,776.00 0 0
Ruangnslinn (1ld)anfanssudamtu 41,054.12 319,870.77 411,900.85
RuanuazsEnaRuwn Suanisiu (RN -624.74 3,456.74 2,277.45
Ruanuazmenafieurinfuan o 5 1 unmax 6,741.40 3,284.66 5,562.11
Ruaauazsensfieurin@uan o 5uf 31 fuanan 6,116.66 6,741.40 3,284.66
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11.3 MTNARTFEUNWNTRUNAIATY NaNBUTIFIUENITRY LAZNANSANTUNUIBILEEN

2556 2555 2554
ARTIEIULARIANNAINITALUMSUNAlS (PROFITABILITY RATIO)
Smsnenidiedi (%) 10.67% 10.46% 9.98%
nsnenidiasng (%) 5.62% 5.76% 5.64%
dousinednsnenidie (%) 5.05% 4.70% 4.34%
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AnlegnBriatiu (L) * 0.1087 0.0918 0.0526
SRTINARBLUNUET DY (%) 7.94% 7.88% 4.56%
ansdrunansdszansninwlunisaiiiney (EFFICIENCY RATIO)
ANIHARALUNUINNRUNTNE (%) 2.51% 2.34% 1.80%
AnINNIUYUBRIRUNINE (151) 0.12 0.13 0.13
yara iy sieliu 1.14 1.16 1.16
ARFIFIUIASTIEWUTAU18NI9NI5¥U (FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO)
ﬁmmzﬁ'qwﬁ%uﬁ@mumméﬁ@ﬁm (i) 1.75 276 1.99
dnadauRulinseRug (W) 1.40 1.40 1.62
ARTIN1TNLRUTTUNG (%) 48.60% 43.86% -
ARTIAIUAUMWRUNITNE (ASSET QUALITY RATIO)
é”mm'qum'wLﬁ'auﬁmﬁmzz};mﬁi@auﬁmw (%) 2.31% 1.74% 1.62%
ﬁmm’quuﬁ@mﬁi@auﬁmw (%) 0.24% 0.19% 0.44%
Smdrudulidudeiivgasufee Sreduda (%) 3.21% 2.45% 2.64%
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

0

Mr. Preecha Veerapong
The Chairman of the Board

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013

To the Shareholders

The year 2013 was the year where the company has been able to generate
revenue greater than prior years. The company has undergone improvement
in its various work process and system to enhance efficiency particularly
the credit approval process. This resulted in the successful operating
results with satisfactory profit of Baht 45.85 million increasing by 21.84%
from that of the year 2012.

For the year 2014, the company emphasizes modification of forms of
services catering to customer needs, to become contributor to the society,
and to conduct its business in line with good governance principle,
including the maintenance of an appropriate compensation to shareholders,

customers, partners, and all employees.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my gratitude
toward the Management, employees, shareholders, including customers
and partners who have contributed to the successful performance of the
company throughout. The company shall attempt with its utmost competent

to move forward with the aim of achieving a solid and sustainable growth



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

To the Shareholders of Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

The Audit Committee of Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC (ECL) consists of 3 independent directors with qualification per standard
requirement, namely :

Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan, the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda, a committee member,
Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, Ph.D., a committee member

During the year 2013, the Audit Committee performed its duties with responsibility as assigned by the Board of Directors. There
were 5 Audit Committee meetings held and during 2014 until the report date, one additional meeting totaling 6 meetings with the essence
of the meeting summarized below :

1. Review company financial reports to ensure accuracy and adequate

« Review interim and fiscal annual financial statements for the year 2013 in cooperation with the auditor and management of the
company including specific meeting with the auditor excluding management by enquiries, listening to explanation, as well as providing
advices or opinion in various issues related to financial report of the company prior to submission to the Board of Directors for disclosure
approval consideration to the Securities Exchange of Thailand, and the Securities Exchange Commission

* Opinion : The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the financial reports for fiscal year 2013 were true and fair in all material
respects in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

2. Review system of internal control and internal audit to ensure an appropriate system including review the independence of internal
auditor

* Provide approval for the audit plan, consider audit results and follow-up with management for process improvement action
regarding its operations in accordance with issues found by internal auditor.

* Provide conclusive opinion on system of internal control of the company for the year 2013 in accordance with the adequacy of
system of internal control assessment form provided by the Securities and Exchange Commission in conjunction with the self-assessment
process performed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors in accordance with the good governance principle.

« Consider selection of the outsourcing company internal auditor including the assessment of results of internal audit activities
performed by internal auditor during the year 2013

+ Opinion : The Audit Committee was of the opinion that system of internal control and internal audit is of the company has

been sufficient and appropriate, and that the internal audit function has been independent.
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3. Review to ensure the company has been in compliance with the law related to securities and securities exchange of Thailand, the

law related to the company’ business including rules, announcement /order issued by authorities under those laws.

* Acknowledge report regarding compliance with the law related to securities and securities exchange, relevant business law,
and follow-up on development of such issues

* Acknowledge from auditor that no issues or observation needed to be reported to the Audit Committee in accordance with
Article 89/25 of the Securities and Securities Exchange Act.

« Opinion : The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company has supervised and monitored appropriate conduct in
compliance with relevant law, and acknowledged quarterly law compliance report.

4. Review company’ s system of risk management

* Review company’ s risk management activities under the sub-committee on risk management committee guidance

* Acknowledgement : The Audit Committee acknowledged risk management policies and conduct against risk of corruption which
the company is in process of preparing such document and application for membership ‘Private Sector Collective Action Coalition
Against Corruption (CAC)'.

« Opinion : The Audit Committee acknowledged the risk management activities of the Risk Management Sub-Committee, and will

monitor results of the guidelines prohibiting bribery payment, or activities against fraud and corruption.
5. Consider selection, propose for appointment, and approval of audit fees for the company’s external and internal auditors

» Considered selection and proposed to the Board for appointment consideration, and approval request to the Annual General
Shareholders’ Meeting 2014 - Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern, and / or Mrs. Vilairat Rojnuckarin, and / or Mr. Visuth Petchpanitchkul all from
DIA International Audit Co., Ltd. as the Company’s external auditor for the year 2014 with recommended audit fees for the year 2014
proposed to be Baht 830,000

* Opinion : The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the proposed audit form has performed satisfactorily applying auditing
standards in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principle,has performed with professionalism to the utmost capabilities,
and has provided process improvement recommendation regarding internal control, and being independent in its audit works. It is
therefore appropriate to submit to the Board of Directors for appointment consideration to be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting.

6. Review related party transactions or transactions that may have conflicting interests in accordance with law related to securities and
securities exchange and relevant law to company’ s business including rules, regulation, announcement, order issued by authorities

of those laws

* Acknowledged company’ s related party transaction and requirement established for future commitment for related party
transactions that they were in the normal course of business

« Acknowledged conduct consistent with guidance established by the Board of Directors related to basis and report procedure
regarding vested interests of directors and management of the company in accordance with Securities Exchange Commission
established procedures for listed companies to perform

* Opinion : The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the company has been in compliance with the regulation and relevant law.
7. Others

* Follow-up on progress in adhering to resolution passed by the Audit Committee

+ Self-assessment performed by the Audit Committee for the year 2013 to be submitted to the Board of Directors

* Reviewed information disclosure to the Securities Exchange of Thailand and the Securities Exchange Commission in the Annual
Report 2013 (Form 56-2) and in the annual information disclosure form ended on 31 December 2013 of the company (Form 56-1)

* Reported summary performance of the Audit Committee for the year 2013 to the Board of Directors quarterly

+ Considered selection of internal auditor to perform its duties as company’s internal auditor for the year 2014

The Committee has performed its duties in accordance with scope of authorities and responsibilities to the Board of Directors
as required independently. The Committee expressed its opinion maintaining transparency, explainable, and verifiable considering

good governance principle in accordance with guidance provided by the Securities Exchange of Thailand.

Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan
The Chairman of the Audit Committee
Date 27 February 2013

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Baht in thousand

2013 2012 2011
Asset
Total Asset 1,873,401.32 1,777,750.48 1,417,099.77
Hire Purchase Receivable 1,645,947.46 1,654,839.57 1,300,059.62
Short Term Investment 100,052.35 0 0
Long Term Loan to Others 0 2,993.46 5,689.78
Sale w/Right of Redemption Agreement Receivables 57,989.05 57,853.72 61,212.56
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities 1,194,775.90 1,303,202.79 943,045.55
Overdrafts and Loan 1,176,130.86 1,284,778.00 928,017.99
Shareholders’ Equity 678,625.42 476,700.72 474,054.22
Operating Results
Total Revenue 228,494.56 203,776.66 150,318.51
Hire Purchase Income — Net 176,784.11 154,159.83 107,544.02
Income from Sale w/Right of Redemption 5,697.00 6,599.46 6,350.31
Operating Expenses 87,740.02 79,094.86 73,627.98
Net Income (Loss) After Tax 45,848.70 37,631.91 21,575.18
Profitability Ratio
Interest Income (%) 10.67% 10.46% 9.98%
Interest Expense (%) 5.62% 5.76% 5.64%
Net Interest Income (%) 5.05% 4.70% 4.34%
Net Income (Loss) (%) 20.07% 18.46% 14.35%
Net Profit per Share 0.1078 0.0918 0.0526
Return on Equity (%) 7.94% 7.88% 4.56%
Operating Efficiency Ratio
Return on Total Asset (%) 2.51% 2.34% 1.80%
Total Asset Turnover (Times) 0.12 0.13 0.13
Book Value per Share 1.14 1.16 1.16
Financial Policy Ratio Analysis
Total Liabilities to Equity (Times) 1.75 2.76 1.99
Loan to Borrowing (Times) 1.40 1.40 1.62
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 48.60% 43.86% =
Asset Quality Ratio
Provision for Doubtful Debt over Total Receivables (% ) 2.31% 1.74% 1.62%
Bad Debts over Total Receivables (%) 0.24% 0.19% 0.44%
Non Accrued Receivables over Total Receivables (%) 3.21% 2.45% 2.64%

Year 2011 - Dividend declared for operating results January - December 2011 and retained earnings at the rate of Baht 0.05 per share
Year 2012 - Dividend declared for operating results

January - June 2012 at the rate of Baht 0.04 per share

July - December 2012 at the rate of Baht 0.04 per share
Year 2013 - Dividend declared for operating results January - June 2013 at the rate of Baht 0.03 per share
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2. POLICIES AND OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS ENGAGEMENT

The company is engaged in providing used motor vehicle hire purchase finance, sales with right of redemption
credit (floor plan finance) to vehicle dealers, vehicle comprehensive and third party liability insurance brokerage services. The
company has commenced its business undertaking since 1984, and become a registered entity in the securities exchange

on 1 March 2004.

During the year 2013, ECL engages in motor vehicle hire purchase concentrating on used passenger vehicles and
vans, pickup truck and others accounting for 72%, and 28% of total credit extension respectively. Vehicles financed are
primarily Japanese and European makes with not too high price range. These are vehicles with reasonable demand and
turnover in the market place for example Toyota, Nissan, Honda, Isuzu, and Mitsubishi. Most clients reside in Bangkok and

nearby provinces including the Eastern provinces.

Another type of credit extension is referred to as ‘Floor Plan’ finance. This is the credit extension to support motor vehicle
distributors/dealers to purchase vehicles for sales. In addition ECL provides after sales/finance services through vehicle

registration renewal, vehicle insurance policy renewal, and third party liability insurance renewal services.

These services provide customer conveniences, supplementary income for the Company, and protection against

risks which may occur to vehicle collateral in the credit extension process.
2.1 Vision, Commitment, and slogan
Vision
» To be an expert in the used vehicle hire purchase finance, a fair trading partner, to provide excellent services,
and to add long term value for the stakeholders

Commitment

» To create utmost potential for services to maintain competitive edge with quality employee perseverance, state
of the art technology, and uphold good governance principle in response to the highest customer satisfaction and optimum
return to all stakeholders with fairness and responsibility toward the society

» To be an expert in the used vehicle hire purchase finance, with 30 years of continuing and acquired business
experiences

« To treat customers with fairness regarding merchandize and services without bias

« To engage in business with ethics and dedication toward excellences

Slogan

+ Our service mind is your satisfaction

* Speed Car Speed Money

Business Obijective

Business objective emphasizes hire purchase finance services for individual customer group who needs used vehicles
both passenger, and commercial vehicles. Because of the company’s experiences, expertise, good and long years of
relationship with used vehicle dealers, coupled with reasonably good return for used vehicle finance relative to the company’s
overall costs, the company has the objective of increasing credit extension to new customers both in Bangkok, and branches

in upcountry for example the provinces Cholburi, Chantaburi, Rayong, and Nakorn Sawan.

2.2 Changes and Development Over the Past 3 Years

19 May 2003 » The formation of Eastern Commercial Leasing Co., Ltd. through merger with Professional
Leasing Co., Ltd. to engage in used vehicle hire purchase finance with core shareholders
being the Veerapong Family (59.83%), and the Tantraporn Familiy (22.30%).

15 September 2003  + Transformed into a public company

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



1 March 2004

12 May 2010

29 November 2013

9 December 2013

16 December 2013

Became a registered company in the securities exchange and registered capital increase
by Baht 100 million resulted in registered and paid capital increased to Baht 410 million
The company has registered capital increase by Baht 205 million with total registered
capital totaling Baht 615 million to support right conversion into ordinary shares under the
company’s warrant (ECL W1) with target increase over a period of 3 years.

Last date for exercise of warrant to subscribe to ordinary shares with the results having 235
shareholders subscribed to 184,776,000 new shares or capital increase by Bath 184,776,000
The company registered capital increase and paid up from Bath 410,000,000 to Baht
594,776,000

Increased ordinary shares totaling 184,776,000 shares have started trading in the securities

market.

2.3 Structure of Shareholders of the Group Companies

The company does not have investment in subsidiaries or any other affliates

2.4 Relationship with Major Shareholders’ Business Group

Based on the nature of the company’s main business, the company has not materially been in competition with nor

having relationship or connected with major shareholders’ business undertaking.

Revenue structure as reported in ECL’s financial statements
for the year ended on 31 December 2011, 2012, and 2013

was as follows :

Note : * This is interest earned from Floor Plan finance

2013 2012 2011
Revenue
Baht Million Per cent , Baht Million Per cent ; Baht Million Per cent
1. Hire Purchase Income - Net 176.78 77.37 154.16 75.65 107.54 71.54
2. Income from Sale w/Right of Redemption* 5.70 2.49 6.60 3.24 6.35 4.22
Revenue from Credit Extension 182.48 79.86 160.76 78.89 113.89 75.76
. Other Revenue

+ Fees and Service 2.23 0.98 2.50 1.23 3.98 2.65

« Default penalty income 15.22 6.66 12.79 6.28 9.36 6.23
 Insurance commission 6.99 3.06 8.75 4.29 7.65 5.09

* Interest income 0.50 0.22 0.78 0.38 1.02 0.68

+ Other income 21.07 0.22 18.20 8.93 14.42 9.59
Other Revenue Total 46.01 20.14 43.02 21.11 36.43 24.24
Total Revenue 228.49  100.00 203.78  100.00 150.32  100.00
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3. RISK FACTORS

Risk factors which may occur and affect the operations of the company consist of the following :
Financial Risks
3.1 Risk Arising from the Volatility of Interest Rate

Hire purchase business generates revenue from fixed interest rate throughout the life of the hire purchase contract
while cost of fund is derived from borrowings both fixed and floating interest rates. Changes in the prevailing lending interest
rate have a direct impact on cost of fund, and profit of the Company. With the current floating rate debt amounting to Baht
853.12 million, a rise in floating interest rate by 0.5% will result in an incremental rise in interest expense by Baht 4.27 million.
The Company as a matter of policy shall mitigate risk arising from interest rate volatility by sourcing fixed rate funding with
low rate of interest that will achieve a profitable interest margin, and concurrently with loan tenor close to the average life of

the outstanding credit portfolio.

The proportion of fixed rate and floating rate loan of the Company as at 31 December 2011, 2012, and 2013 is as

follows :
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Type of Interest Rate

Baht Million  Percent Baht Million Percent Baht Million Percent

- Fixed Rate* 312.31 26.80 545.03 42.58 246.74 26.82

- Floating Rate ** 853.12 73.20 735.07 57.42 677.35 73.18
Total 1,165.43 100.00 1,280.10 100.00 924.09 100.00

Notes * Fixed Rate loans consist of part of long term loan,

*k

Floating Rate loans consist of bank overdraft, other short term borrowing, and part of long term loan

3.2 Liquidity Risks

The company’s source of fund comprises shareholders’ equity and borrowing from financial institution as at the end

of 31 December 2012, and 2013 in the following proportion :

2013 2012
Baht Million Percent Baht Million Percent

Shareholders’ Equity 678.63 36.80 476.70 27.13
Borrowing
- Short Term Loan * 653.78 35.45 643.31 36.66
- Long Term Loan 511.65 27.75 636.79 36.29

Total Borrowing 1,165.43 63.20 1,280.10 72.87

Grand Total 1,844.06 100.00 1,754.65 100.00

Note : * ShortTerm Loan consists of overdraft, other short borrowings, current portion of long term loan end of 2012 amounting to Baht 494.82

million, and 2013 amounting to Baht 501.11 million

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



If financial institution calls for repayment of short term debt, the Company may encounter liquidity risks. As a matter
of policy the Company mitigates this risk by utilizing long term credit facilities with repayment term corresponding to the
cash flow receipt from customer installment payment. The Company also controls receivable collection efficiently to mitigate
risk of the disparity between source and use of fund. As at 31 December 2013 the Company had obligation to repay loan
maturing within one year amounted to Baht 653.78 million. At the same time the Company had installment receivable within
one year from its credit portfolio amounted to Baht 699.47 million which was sufficient to meet its debt obligation (Details of

the relationship between the source and use of capital appears in Section 12, Analysis and Explanation of Management)
3.3 Risks on Potential Increasing Future Debt Obligation

As at 31 December 2013, total liabilities stood at Baht 1,194.78 million, and Shareholders’ Equity amounted to Bath 678.63
million. The Debt-to-Equity Ratio was 1.75 declined from 2.76 of prior year. Capital increase via exercise of right under warrant
subscribed to ordinary shares on 29 November 2013 resulted in increase in the shareholders’ equity and conversely the decline
in the debt to equity ratio. Nonetheless the Company’s business requires expansion both in Bangkok and in upcountry provinces.
There may be a need to increase debt funding in the future which will result in the greater amount of debt commitment. The
Company remains to be exposed to risks of having to maintain the debt to equity ratio of no more than 3, or the ability to comply
with lending conditions as imposed by creditors. Nevertheless, the Company will source low cost funding and attempt to improve

lending condition considering the Company'’s financial structure for the benefit of the company and its shareholders.

Business Risks
3.4 Market Risks and Competition

Competition in the hire purchase business stresses the reduction of rate of interest resulting in the continuing decline in
the hire purchase rate or upward adjustment at a slower pace than the increase in the prevailing loan rate quoted by financial
institution. This has been particularly true in the hire purchase finance provided by motor vehicle manufacturer captive hire
purchase companies emphasizing new vehicles. This includes hire purchase finance companies which are commercial banks
or companies affiliated with a number of financial institutions. They have altered their strategy from the original new vehicle
finance to expansion increasingly into used vehicle finance in order to earn a higher rate of hire purchase comparing to new
vehicles. This resulted in increasing competition in the used vehicle finance as well. The Company’s used vehicle finance

rates declined as a result with its averaged rates of 3.5%, 3.75%, and 3.75% during 2011, 2012, and 2013 respectively.

Because of such competition, the Company does not have policy of competition through rate reduction. Instead the
Company adapts itself through efficiency, flexible policy, and skills with acquired experiences from long years of business,
the speedy and good quality service to customer, the maintenance of good relationship providing good benefits to motor vehicle

dealers including the expanding relationship with more used vehicle dealers and increasing policy to provide other credit services.
3.5 Risks from Credit Extension for Used Motor Vehicle Finance

Although used vehicle finance provides greater return than new vehicles the risks are also higher in particular the
risk of appraising the price and quality of used vehicle taken as collateral for hire purchase finance. The company attempts
to reduce risk in this regard by recruiting experience and skillful appraisal staff to appraise vehicle price and quality, and
marketing of used vehicle finance, and careful selection of high standard used vehicle dealers who are financially sound
and offer to sell quality used vehicles with appropriate price. This will help reduce risk for the vehicle quality and build client
confidence. The Company also maintains policy of lending the amount below market value of vehicle, and increases down
payment to mitigate risks. In any event, the Company has not incurred loss as a result of incorrect appraisal of vehicle price

and quality used as collateral in the credit extension process.
3.6 Operating Risks Arising From Non - Performing Assets

The Company may be exposed to default risks. To mitigate such risk, the Company maintains stringent measures on
every steps of the credit process including the requirement for personal guarantee for hirer, the establishment of an appropriate
level of down payments corresponding to the risk, credit check on all hirers, stringent and accelerated collection procedure,
and the sufficient bad debt reserve in accordance with Company standard. The Company also maintains system of audit,

internal control, good and efficient reporting which help reduce the problem of non-performing credit.

91



RISK FACTORS

During the years 2012, and 2013, non-accrued customers overdue 5 months or more which were litigation cases in
process pending judgment amounted to Baht 42.82 million, and Baht 56.11 million accounting for 2.45% and 3.21% of total

receivables respectively.

The increase in non-accrued receivables was a result of high value client contract and faster litigation process.
Nonetheless, the company recognizes the risk and attempts to closely monitor installment collection with all stringent follow-up
measures to render the speedy and greatest recovery possible. The Company also hires outsider to help monitor and contact

these customers for vehicle return and settlement.
3.7 Risks on Disposal of Repossessed Vehicles

The Company is also exposed to risks of loss through disposal of repossessed vehicles. Repossessed vehicles are
disposed of through public auction or publicized sale. The company retains recourse to borrower or guarantor if proceed from
sale remains inadequate to settle remaining outstanding with the Company. In the event such recourse is not possible, the
company will incur loss from sale of repossessed vehicle. Selling price of such vehicles depends on their quality, age, and
popularity of the make including market condition and demand at the time for examples upward adjustment of gasoline price,
or new vehicle taxation structure declines. For credit approval, the Company attempts to control not to extend the amount of
credit too high or allow too low the amount of down payment because the value of repossessed vehicle may be too low and
inadequate to settle outstanding balance resulted in loss to the Company. Nonetheless the Company established reserve

for impairment of asset which the Company felt to be adequate.

During 2012, the company repossessed and disposed of 89 vehicles for value Baht 27.26 million accounting for 1.99 %
of all vehicles under hire purchase with the Company, comparing with 109 vehicles for value Baht 41.44 million accounting
for 2.42% during 2013. The company incurred losses from disposal of repossessed vehicles amounting to Baht 9.04 and

10.64 million during 2012, and 2013 respectively.

(*Value of repossessed vehicle = debt balance - unearned interest + repossession costs)

Management Risks
3.8 Risk of Major Shareholder Management Influence

The Company’s major shareholders comprise the Veerapong, and the Tantraporn
Families. Shareholders of both have controlling interests at the Annual General Shareholders’
Meeting except for matters where the law and company articles require voting of 3 quarters
of the votes at the shareholders’ meeting. Therefore other shareholders may not be able to
accumulate their votes sufficiently to provide a check and balance for issue the major
shareholders propose at the meeting. Nonetheless the Company has implemented policy to
treat all shareholders equally and to recognize the right to participate in shareholders’ meeting
of minority shareholders. At the meeting, the Board Chairman provides opportunity and encourages shareholders to freely
express their opinion or query on operating results of the Company, and equally participate in the voting on all agenda (Details

included in the entity governance section, ltem 1, right of shareholders, and 2. equal treatment for all shareholders.
3.9 Risk of Reliance on Specialists

The business of the company requires credit and marketing personnel who possess skill, and experience in appraising
vehicle, and knowledgeable about used vehicle market value including personnel who are capable of follow-up on collection.
At present the company maintains 32 credit and marketing staff and 19 collection staff which are appropriate and adequate
to support the present hire purchase portfolio. The Company provides incentive measures for these staff to retain them in
the long term to mitigate staff loss. Such measures include development of a clear career path, an appropriate level of
compensation, and a good relationship which is conducive to employee participation, and makes employee feel the sense

of ownership of the company.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



4. GENERAL AND OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION

4.1 GENERAL INFORMATION
4.1.1 Company location

Name of the company

Address

Homepage
Type of business
Company registration Number

Type and number of shares

Cholburi branch address

Chantaburi branch address

Rayong branch address

Nakorn Sawan branch address

Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company Limited

976/1 Soi Praram 9 Hospital, Rimklongsamsen Road

Bangkapi Sub-District, Huay Kwang District, Bangkok 10310
Telephone 02-641-5252, Facsimile 02-641-5994, 02-641-5995
http://www.ecl.co.th

Automobile hire purchase finance

Registration Number 0107546000288

Common share 615,000,000 shares, Par value Baht 1 per share

Registered capital Baht 615,000,000, Paid Up Baht 594,776,000

728/10 Sukhumvit Road Bangprasoi Sub-District,
Muang District, Cholburi Province
Telephone 038-278889, 038-278676-7, Facsimile 038-278669

307 Ta Chalab Road, Talad Sub-District,
Muang Chantaburi District, Chantaburi Province
Telephone 039-301919, Facsimile 039-301918

75 Rasbamroong Road Nernpra Sub-District,
Muang Rayong District, Rayong Province
Telephone 038-614979, Facsimile 038-614978

195 Mue 4, Nakorn Sawan Ok Sub-District,
Muang District, Nakorn Sawan Province
Telephone 056-276960, Facsimile 056-276959

4.1.2 Location of the legal entity held by the Company from 10% and above of its paid up shares

4.1.3 Location of references

Share Registrar
Address

Audit Firm

External Auditor

None

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
Number 62, Securities Exchange of Thailand Building
Floor 4, 6-7 Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey Sub-District,
Klongtoey District Bangkok 10110

Telephone 02-229-2800, Facsimile 02-359-1259-63

DIA International Audit Co., Ltd.

Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern, Certified Public Accountant # 2982
Or Mrs. Vilairat Rojanakarin, CPA, Registration# 3104,
Telephone 02-259-5300-2, Facsimile 02-260-1553, 02-259-8956

4.2 Other Important Information which may be beneficial or may materially affect investors’ decision

None
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5. INFORMATION ON THE SHARE SECURITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS

5.1 Registered and paid up share capital

On 31 December 2012, the company has had Baht 615 million registered share capital of which Baht 410 million was
paid up consisting of Baht 410 million ordinary shares at par value of Baht 1 per share. This was a result of Baht 205 million
capital increase on 12 May 2010 to support ordinary share conversion/subscription as a result of shareholder exercising right

under warrant in accordance with resolution passed at the AGM 2010.

On 29 November 2013, there was ordinary share conversion from right under warrant (Warrant ECL - W1) with subscription
increasing paid up capital by 184,776,000 shares with par value Baht 1 per share. The company registered the paid up

amount increase with the Ministry of Commerce on 9 December 2013

On 31 December 2013, the company has had Baht 615 million registered capital of which Baht 594,776,000 was paid up
comprising 594,776,000 ordinary shares at par value Baht 1 per share. There remains registered capital not yet subscribed
to or paid up numbering 20,224,000 shares, and warrants not exercised expired on 29 November 2013. The company shall
proceed to register reduction of registered capital to the level of shares subscribed and paid up, and register its capital fund

accordingly.

5.2 Shareholders

Shareholding structure and the list of the first 10 largest shareholders as at the close of Share Registry on 24 December 2013 :

Rank Name List Shares Held (Shares) Percentage
1 The Veerapong Family 210,860,900 35.79
2 The Tantraporn Family 32,497,842 5.46
3 Miss Pranee Tae 21,750,400 3.66
4 Mr. Tosaporn Osatanond 18,096,000 3.04
5 Mr. Veerachai Daetamorntan 17,984,300 3.02
6 Mr. Panurak Sangaram 15,686,000 2.64
7 Mrs. Supaporn Chanserivitaya 12,475,000 2.10
8 Mr. Suchart Kaettoprakarn 12,144,000 2.04
9 Mr. Piyapong Boonyasrisawat 11,918,400 2.00

10 Mr. Tanapol Sabsomboon 10,530,000 1.77

11 Others 230,833,158 38.47

Total 594,776,000 100.00

Par Value Baht 1 / Share

On 24 December 2013, the Veerapong family group shareholders comprised :

Rank Name List Shares Held (Shares) Percentage
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong and spouse 121,023,575 20.35
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong 36,193,100 6.09
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong 32,389,276 5.45
4. Miss Bangornsiri Veerapong 20,000,000 3.36
5. Eastern Estate Co., Ltd. 1,254,949 0.21
0. Prasartporn Junior Co., Ltd. 2,000,000 0.34

Total 212,860,900 35.79
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On 24 December 2013, the Tantraporn family group shareholders comprised :

Rank Name List Shares Held (Shares) Percentage
1. Mr. Vitaya Tantraporn 18,732,617 3.15
2. Miss Nawan Tantraporn 6,920,175 1.16
3. Mr. Banler Tantraporn 1,845,000 0.31
4, Miss Yajai Tantraporn 5,000,000 0.84
5. Miss Natatiya Tantraporn 50 0.00
Total 32,497,842 5.46

5.3 Issuance of other types of securities

- The company issued the first lot of warrant (ECL - Warrant 1) to subscribe to ordinary share increase on 21 December
2010. The warrant is valid for a period of 3 years with the last scheduled date for exercise of right on 29 November 2013.
Warrants that were not exercised accordingly expired on 30 November 2013 (details presented under section 2.2 Changes
and development over the past 3 year)

- Issuance of other securities in the stock exchange - none

5.4 Dividend Policy

- The Company maintains the policy of keeping dividend payout ratio approximately 50% of net profit after tax
and appropriation for legal reserves each year depending on necessity and appropriateness in the future as approved by
resolution passed at the shareholders’ meeting. The Board is authorized to approve interim dividend for shareholder when it

is found that the Company’s profit is sufficient, and to report for acknowledgement at the subsequent shareholders’ meeting.

During the year 2013, the company paid interim dividend to shareholders at the rate of Baht 0.03 per share or 48.59 %

of net profit for the 6-month operating results January - June 2013.

Record of dividend declared during the past 5 years

Dividend Declared for Financial Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Net profit (Baht million) 29.77 28.43 27.23 21.57 37.39
Dividend at the rate of Baht / Share 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.08

Payout Ratio : Dividend / Net Profit (%) 82.63 86.53 90.33 95.04 87.72
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6. MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

6.1 The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors, as at 31 December 2013, consists of 9 directors

Number

Board
Rank Name Position of Board Attendance
Meeting
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong The Chairman of the Board 5 3
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Member of the Executive Committee 5 4
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Member of the Executive Committee 5 5
4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Director, Member of the Executive 5 5
Committee, and Company Secretary
5. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa Independent Director 5 5
6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa Independent Director 5 5
7. Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan Chairman of the Audit Committee 5 5
8. Police Lieutenant General Audit Committee Member 5 5
Amporn Charuchinda
9. Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, PhD, Audit Committee Member 5 3

Having Mrs. Pimolwan Wangsinsuksom acted as Board Secretary.

Authorized Directors

Authorized Directors consist of Mr. Preecha Veerapong, Mr. Danucha Veerapong, Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong, and
Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol. Any two of the four authorized directors may sign jointly and affixed with company seal to
bind the company.

Duty and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has authority, duty, and responsibility in managing the company in accordance with the law,
objectives, and articles of the company, as well as legitimate resolution passed at the shareholders’ meeting, with honesty,
and due care in safeguarding the company’s interests. In summary, important authority, duty, and responsibility are :

1. To arrange for the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting within 4 months after the date of the close of the company’s
accounting period.

2. To arrange for the meeting of the Board of Directors at least once every 3 months.

3. To arrange for the preparation of the statement of financial position as at the end of the fiscal year, and statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended at the same date, the financial statements of which have been audited
and presented for consideration and approval at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.

4. To delegate its authority to one or more directors or other individuals to perform any acts on behalf of the Board of

Directors under the control of the Board or to delegate to such individuals with authority and within the duration as
the Board sees fit. The Board may withdraw, cancel, or modify individuals being delegated or the authority delegated
as appropriate.
The Board may delegate its authority to the Executive Committee empowering it to perform tasks with detailed delegated
authority per scope of duty and authority of the Executive Committee. Such delegation must not be so delegated that
will enable the Executive Committee consider approving transactions which the Executive Committee or individuals
may have conflicting or vested interests or any other conflicting interests with the Company or subsidiaries except
for transaction approval in accordance with policies and principles the Board of directors have already considered
and approved.

5. To establish goal, guidance, policy, plan, and budget of the company, supervise, oversee the administration and
management of the Executive Committee in accordance with assigned policies with the exception of such matters
which the Board of Directors requires the approval via the resolution passed at the shareholders’ meeting prior to
the execution namely matters by law require approval at the shareholders’ meeting such as the increase, decrease
of capital, the issuance of debenture, the sale or transfer of the business of the company in whole or in part with
material substance to other individuals or the acquisition or being recipient of the transfer of the businessofother
company, the modification of the memorandum and articles of association of the company.
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In addition, duties of the Board also encompasses the supervision of the company to perform in accordance with the

law and regulation relevant to the securities, and securities exchange for example related party transaction and the purchase

and sale of assets of material substance in accordance with regulation of the Securities Exchange of Thailand or other law

relevant to the company’s business.

6.2

6.
7.
8.

To consider structure of management, to appoint the Executive Committee, its Chairman, and other committee as appropriate.
To continuously monitor the operating results in accordance with business plan, and buget

Directors must not engage in the same type of business and in competition with the company or being partner in an
ordinary partnership, or being managing partner in a limited partnership, or being director of private companies or
other companies engaging in similar business and in competition with the company regardless of whether such acts

are for the individual directors’ interests or others’ except for prior appointment notification at the shareholders’ meeting.

. Directors must inform the company without delay in the event conflict of interests arises directly or indirectly within the

contract the company enters into or increase, decrease in shares or debenture holding in the company or group companies.

The Management

As at December 31, 2013, there were 8 members of management consisting of the following :

© N o o B~ W DN

Name Position
Mr. Danucha Veerapong The Chairman of the Executive Committee
Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Managing Director
Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Member of the Executive Committee, and Company Secretary
Mr. Isara Srisuda Deputy Managing Director
Mrs. Charatsang Yuampai Assistant Managing Director - Accounting and Finance
Mr. Visith Saikrachang Assistant Managing Director - Collection
Miss Manasanan Banjerdkit Manager - Finance
Miss Kanchana Sophonpongpipat Manager - Accounting

Duty and Authority of the Chairman of the Executive Committee

. To supervise the on-going operations and/or the daily administration of the company.

. To engage or perform duty in accordance with policy, plan, and budget as approved by the Board of Directors and / or

the Executive Committee.

. The Chairman is authorized as delegated by the company to manage the business of the company in accordance

with the objectives, the articles, policies, rules, regulations, orders, resolutions passed at the shareholders’ meeting,
and / or the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee.

The Chairman is authorized to appoint and manage the various sub-committees for the beneft, efficient and good
management of the company, with transparency. The Chairman is also authorized to delegate and/or assign with
such authority within the scope of this power of attorney and/or in accordance with rules, regulation, or order
established by the Board of Directors and /or the Company.

To follow-up and assess the operation of the company regularly to prevent risks from various factors from within or
outside the company.

To consider entering into contracts involving the business of the company and other contracts for the benefit of the
company, including establishing procedures and process to prepare such contracts /agreements and submit for

acknowledgement by the Executive Committee, and the Board of Directors.

. To consider the profit and loss of the company. To propose interim dividend declared or annual dividend declared

for Board of Directors approval.
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8. To consider appropriation of retirement benefit, reward, or various compensation which have been approved by the
Board of Directors for employees or any other individuals performing duties for the company.

9. To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Notwithstanding the delegation, the authority including further delegation to other individuals as appropriate does
not include authority and/or power of attorney for transaction approval which the delegated individual or individual who may
have conflicting interest, vested interest, or interest in any other forms in conflict with interest of the Company or subsidiary
in accordance with regulation of the Securities Exchange of Thailand. Approval for such transactions must be submitted to
the Board of Directors and /or at the shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval in accordance with articles of the

Company or relevant law.
Duty and Authority of the Managing Director

1. To establish mission, objectives, guidelines, policies of the company including command and supervision of the
entire operations of the company.

2. The Managing Director is authorized to consider hiring, appointment, transfer across functional lines / departments /
section or termination of employment, establish hiring rate, compensation, bonus including fringe benefit involving
all employees of the company.

3. The Managing Director is authorized to issue order, rules, announcement, memoranda to enable operations in
accordance with policies and interests of the company and to maintain order, discipline within the organization.

4. To engage in activities involving the general administration of the company.

5. To be authorized to delegate and/or assign other individuals to perform specific duties on behalf of the Managing
Director such delegation to be within the scope of authority delegated in accordance with this power of attorney and / or

rules, regulation or instruction issued by the Board of Directors and/or established by the company.

Notwithstanding the delegation, the authority including further delegation to other individuals as appropriate does not
include authority and/or power of attorney for transaction approval which the delegated individual or individual who may have
conflicting interest, vested interest, or interest in any other forms in conflict with interest of the Company or subsidiary in
accordance with regulation of the Securities Exchange of Thailand. Approval for such transactions must be submitted to the
Board of Directors and /or at the shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval in accordance with articles of the Company

or relevant law.
6.3 Company Secretary

The Board of Directors appointed Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol, director and member of the Executive Committee as
Company Secretary with duties to provide basic legal counseling, and regulations the Board should know, to perform and
oversee company oversight, and various Board activities namely arranging for the Board meeting, preparation of shareholders’
meeting, minutes of the meetings, coordinating for efficient conduct in accordance with resolutions passed at the meeting.
The Board Secretary also has duties in accordance with the law as prescribed by the Securities and Securities Exchange Act
(Version 4) 2008 effective since 31 August 2008 with specific established roles and duties, and responsibilities for company

secretary as follows :

Duties and responsibilities of Company Secretary

1. Prepare and retain documents as follows :
(a) Director registry
(b) Board meeting invitation, minute of the Board, company Annual Report
(c) Shareholders’ meeting invitation, and minute of the shareholders’ meeting

2. Retention of report on conflicting interest reported by directors and management

3. Submission of copy of report on conflicting interest in accordance with Article 89/14 to the Chairman of the Board, and
Chairman of the Audit Committee within 7 working days from the date of receipt of such reports. To ensure that the
Company has system of document retention or evidence related to the disclosure of information, and ensure the accurate

and complete safekeeping and audit trail for at least 5 years from the date of preparation of such document or information.

4. To perform any other duties as prescribed by the Capital Market Commission.
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6.4 Directors and Management Compensation

The Company has not formed a compensation committee. The Board performs such a function by comparing
companies in the same industry and company performance.
Director Compensation

Director compensation was within a limit amounted to Baht 3 million as approved by resolution passed at the

shareholders’ meeting. The sum was appropriated as monthly compensation and meeting fees as follows :

Company chairman Baht 110,000 / month  no meeting fees

Company director Baht 20,000/ month  Baht 5,000 / meeting

Audit Committee chairman Baht 30,000/ month  Baht 5,000 / meeting

Audit Committee member Baht 22,000/ month  Baht 5,000 / meeting

Compensation in Baht 2013 2012 2011
Number of Individuals 6 6 6
Amounts 2,543,000 2,053,000 2,063,000

Remark : the exhibit depicts number of directors and compensation only for non-executive directors, and independent directors

which the company paid for the whole year.

100
i During 2013, the Company paid compensation to directors in the forms of monthly compensation and director’'s meeting

fee detailed as follow :

Board of Audit
Names Position . ) Baht Total
Directors Committee
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong Chairman of the Board 1,280,000 1,280,000
Director and
2. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa 220,000 220,000

Independent Director

Director and
3. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa 220,000 220,000

Independent Director
Director and Chairman of

4. Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan the Audit Committee 340,000 340,000

Director and
Audit Committee member 244,000 244,000

5. Police Lieutenant General
Amporn Charuchinda

Director and

6. Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, PhD
2EL Audit Committee member 2o 2ot

Total 1,720,000 823,000 2,543,000

Remark :  Three other directors who are concurrently executive management are compensated in the forms of salary and others

with details reported within the management group.
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Executive Compensation

6.5
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Compensation in Baht Year 2013 Year 2012 Year 2011
Number of individuals 8 8 8
- Salary 10,915,572.00 9,783,738.00 9,087,888.00
- Bonus 1,058,053.00 839,469.00 230,354.00
- Contribution to Provident Fund * 736,596.00 654,006.00 612,366.00
- Others such as transportation, and costs of living 1,110,459.60 1,071,822.80 1,019,121.80
Total 13,820,680.60 12,349,035.80 10,949,729.80

Remark : * Company contribution at variable rates 3-7% of salary of each executive

Human Resources

Total employees of the company as at 31 December 2013 stood at 109 headcounts assigned to various departments

as follows :

Department Number of Employees

Chairman of the Executive Committee, Managing Director,

Deputy Managing Director, and Company Secretary 4 ﬂ
Marketing Department 32

Branch Operation Department 14

Collection Department 19

Risk Analysis and Planning Department 3

Credit Department 8

Accounting and Finance Department 12

Registration and Vehicle Insurance Department 8

Central Administration Department 9

Total 109

Note : Over the past year there has been no labor dispute.
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Employee Compensation

Compensation in Baht Year 2013 Year 2012 Year 2011

Number of Employees 101 101 100
- Salary 17,996,758.00 16,455,466.00 15,492,158.22
- Bonus 1,345,742.00 1,200,288.00 1,092,763.00
- Provident Fund Contribution * 897,507.00 806,105.00 715,263.00
- others i.e. cost of living, transportation,

and phone bil 4,854,900.00 4,089,106.00 3,811,971.00

Total 25,094,907.00 22,550,965.00 21,112,155.22

Remark : * Company contribution at variable rates 3-7% of salary of each executive.

Employee Development Policies

The company recognizes the importance of employee development to enhance their knowledge, work efficiency,
and service quality corresponding with the changing business needs and be prepared for higher future duties and
responsibilities. Management has established operating procedures for each department and emphasized the active role
of supervisor in closely providing training and development for employees including promoting knowledge and potential
development by dispatching them for training with outside training institutes appropriately in accordance with their duties and

responsibilities at each level and department e.g. marketing and services, legal, accounting, credit analysis, and collection.
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

7.1 Governance Policies

The Board arranges for the establishment of oversight policies, business ethics, and code of conducts for directors,
executives and employees compiling from professional standard of moral and best practices to conserve and promote
creditability and reputation of the individual and the company. Governance policy, business ethics, and code of conducts have
been reviewed and approved by the Board and considered an integral part of the work rules of the company which have been
disseminated to directors, executives, and all employees for implementation, and supervisors at all levels are assigned the tasks
of performing by example, and to supervises and promote all subordinates to seriously practice such policy. The company has

posted the governance policy in the company website.
7.2 The Sub-Committees

The Board appoints sub-committees namely the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee to monitor and supervise

closely the operations of the company and report to the Board regularly.

7.2.1 The Executive Committee

As at 31 December 2013 the Committee comprises directors and executives totaling 8 individuals

Rank Names Position
1. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Director/Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Director/ Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee
3. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Director/Member of the Executive Committee
4.  Mr. Isara Srisuda Deputy Managing Director
5. Mrs. Charatsang Yuampai Assistant Managing Director, Accounting and Finance Department
6. Mr. Visith Saikrachang Assistant Managing Director, Collection Department
7. Mrs. Manatsanan Banjerdkit Manager, Finance

8. Miss Kanchana Sophonpongpipat Manager, Accounting

Mrs. Pimolwan Wangsinsuksom Acts as Committee Secretary.

Duty and Authority of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has authority, duty, and responsibility in managing the on-going operation, and other
administrative function of the company. The Committee is to establish policy, business plan, budget, management structure,
company’s delegation of authority, and operating procedures corresponding to the economic condition in order to submit
to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval and/or acknowledgement including the audit, and follow-up the
operating result in accordance with established policy. In summary, the important duty, authority, and responsibility of the

Committee are as follow :

1. To operate and manage the business of the company fully in accordance with the objectives, the articles, policy,
rules, regulation, orders and resolution of the Board of Directors and/or resolution at the shareholders’ meeting

2. To consider policy establishment, direction, and strategy for the operation of the company, the establishment of financial
plan, budget, human resources management, investment in information technology, business expansion, public
relations, and control and supervision to ensure appointed sub-committee’s conduct fulfilling the Committee’s goal.

3. To consider annual budget appropriation as proposed by Management prior to the submission to the Board of Directors
for consideration and approval, including the consideration and approval for modification, increase in annual expense
budget during the period when the Board is not in session and subsequently submit for acknowledgement when the

Board convenes its session.
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4.  The Committee is authorized to consider and approve operating expenses in the normal course of its business for
example bank account setup, acquisition of assets, acquisition of motor vehicles, credit approval within the limit of
Baht 50 Million per transaction.

5. The Committee is authorized to approve important investment expenditures which have been included in the annual
expense budget as assigned by the Board of Directors or as approved in principle by the Board of Directors.

6. The Committee is authorized to consider and approve borrowing, lending, arranging for credit facilities, issuance of
instrument including providing securities, guarantee for loan or credit, or solicitation of any credit facilities of the company.

7. The Committee is to function as an advisory committee assisting Management in the areas of financial policy,
marketing, human resources management, and other operating areas.

8. The Committee is to establish organizational structure, delegation of authority for the management of the company,
including the appointment, hiring, transfer, and establishment of salary and wages, compensation, bonus for
management staff, and employment termination.

9. The Committee is authorized to delegate under power of attorney to one or more committee members or other
individuals to perform any duties under the Committee’s supervision or to delegate to such individuals to have
authority within duration as the Committee sees fit. The Committee may cancel or modify the delegated individuals
or the authority as appropriate.

10. To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

The authority of the Executive Committee does not include transaction approval which may have conflicting interest or
other transaction the Executive Committee or individuals related to the Committee having interests or any other interest in
conflict with the Company or its subsidiary in accordance with regulation of the Securities Exchange of Thailand. Approval
of such transactions must be submitted to the Board of Directors and /or at the shareholders’ meeting for consideration and

approval in accordance with company’s articles or relevant law and regulations.

7.2.2 The Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2013, there were 3 committee members consisting of

Rank Names Position
1. Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda Audit Committee Member
3. Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, PhD, Audit Committee Member
Mrs. Pimolwan Wangsinsuksom Acts as Committee Secretary.

Individual who is knowledgeable, and experienced in reviewing the Company’s financial reports :

Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is knowledgeable and experienced in accounting and

finance to perform his duty in reviewing financial statements.
Duty and Authority of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is assigned the scope, duty, and responsibility by the Board of Director. The Audit Committee
reports to the Board of Directors and in accordance with new regulations of the year 2008 of the Securities Exchange of

Thailand as follows :

1. To review and ensure the company reporting accurate financial information with sufficient disclosure by coordinating
with external auditor, and management who is responsible for preparation of financial statements quarterly, and
annually. The Audit Committee may suggest the auditor to review or audit any transactions believed to be necessary

and important during the course of audit of the company’s book of accounts.
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. To review jointly with external, and internal auditors to ensure that the company establishes an appropriate and

effective system of internal control and internal audit.

. Toreview and ensure the conduct of the company in compliance with the law relevant to the securities, and securities

exchange, regulations of the securities exchange of Thailand, or other law relevant to the company’s business.

. To consider the selection and propose an independent party for appointment as the external auditor of the company,

propose for the auditor's compensation, and to participate in the meeting with external auditor without management

present at least once a year.

. To consider related party transactions or transactions which may have conflicting interests to be in accordance with

the law and regulation of the securities exchange to ensure that such transactions are reasonable and for the best

interest of the company.

. To prepare report of the activities of the Audit Committee, and disclose the report within Company’s Annual Report

such report to be affixed with the signature of the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The report should comprise the

following information :

+ Opinion on the process of preparation and disclosure of financial reports of the company whether they are accurate,
complete and reliable,

» Opinion on the adequacy of the system of internal control of the company

» Opinion onlegal compliance related to the securities and securities exchange, regulation of the securities exchange,
or law relevant to the company’s business

»  Opinion on the appropriateness of the auditor

+ Opinion on transactions that may have conflicting interests

» The number of meetings of the Audit Committee, and attendance of individual audit committee member

» Opinion or overall observation of the Audit Committee in performing its duties in accordance with the Audit
Committee Charter

» Any other reports the Committee felt the shareholders and investors in general should know within the scope of
duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors

. To perform any other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and agreed by the Audit Committee such as

reviewing financial policy and risk management, executive management conduct in accordance with code of ethics
in business, reviewing jointly with management for important reports required to be presented to the public in

accordance with the law such as management report and analysis.

7.3 Recruitment and Appointment of Directors and Management Staff

1.

Recruitment of Directors

The Company has not established recruitment committee. The Board acts as the selection committee considering highly

qualified individuals with experiences in executive position within entity, and individuals with appropriate qualification for the

position of directors and submits for approval at the shareholders’ meeting. There are generally two occasions requiring the

appointment of directors :

Qualification of Directors

1.

Director qualification per public company act principle
a. Being an individual

b. Reaching legal age

c. Not being bankrupt, incapacitated, or appeared incapacitated

d. Not being convicted to jail term at last verdict for offence relating to asset fraud

e. Not being expelled or terminated from civil service or organization or public sector entity on ground of fraud

on active duty

Being knowledgeable, competent, and experienced beneficial to the business operations, truly interested in the
business of the company, and being independent in expressing opinion in performing the oversight duty

counterbalancing with the operations under management
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Director Selection

1)

Appointment of directors by resolution of the shareholders for example appointment of directors replacing
directors scheduled to be retired through rotation at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting and/or the
appointment of additional new director requiring approval at the shareholders’ meeting. The Board is to submit
names of candidates with appropriate qualification for the position of director to the shareholders’ meeting for
consideration. The Meeting shall consider according to standard, and procedures per company articles namely
1.1 One shareholder has voting right equal to the number of shares held
1.2 The poll for director may be conducted with voting for each individual director, one poll for one director or
one poll for multiple number of directors as the Meeting sees fit. In each poll, each shareholder must vote
with the number of votes per 1.1 in its entirety. The shareholder may not allocate one’s votes to multiple
candidates.
1.3 The vote for director is by majority with the Chairman having the casting vote in the event of a tie vote.
1.4 At the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting each year, at least a third or proportion close to a third of
the number of directors shall retire with the longest servicing directors retiring first. Retired directors are
eligible to be reappointed.
The appointment of director replacing retired director for reasons other than scheduled retirement in accordance
with Company Articles namely the Board considers individuals with required qualification and without prohibitive
record according to law, to be appointed as replacement director at the next meeting of the Board unless the
service tenor of the director is less than 2 months old. The replacement director shall stay as director only
within the service tenor remaining of the director one replaces. The voting of the Board for such director must

be at least three-quarter of the total votes of the Board remaining.

106 2. Directors designated from major shareholders

The Company has four directors representing the major shareholders namely Mr. Preecha Veerapong, Mr. Danucha Veerapong,

Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong, and Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol

3. Appointment of the Executive Committee

The Board is authorized to select a number of directors and executives to be appointed as Executive Committee members.

4. Recruitment of Independent Directors

For lack of the recruitment committee, the Board or at the shareholders’ meeting appoints independent directors

considering, selecting qualified, knowledgeable, competent, and experienced individuals who will be beneficial to

the on-going operations of the company. Such qualification shall be in accordance with director qualification above, and

regulations established by the Securities Exchange Commission, and the Securities Exchange of Thailand per definition of

independent director.

Definition of an independent director is a director with qualification as prescribed on 5 June 2008 by the Securities

Exchange Commission as follows :

1)

2)

Directors holding no more than 1% of the company’s, parent’s, subsidiary’s, affiliate’s, or legal entity with possible
conflicting interest’s shares with voting rights including related parties of the particular independent director’s holding,
Directors not being or was former directors participating in the management of the Company, employee, staff,
advisor with regular salary, or individual with controlling interest in the company, parent, subsidiary, affiliate,
subsidiaries at same level, or legal entity which may have conflicting interest unless having vacated from such
situation at least 2 years prior to current appointment.

Not an individual with hereditary relationship or through legal registration in the form of parents, spouses, brother
or sister, and children including spouse of children of the executive management, major shareholders, individual
with controlling interest, or individual who may have been proposed to be executive management or with controlling

interest of the company or subsidiaries.
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4)

8)

Not having or used to have business relationship with the Company, parent, subsidiary, affliate, or legal entities
which may have conflicting interest in such a way that may impede one’s independent judgment, including not
being or used to be major shareholders, director who is not independent director or management of one who
has business relationship with the Company, parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or legal entity which may have conflicting
interest except for having vacated from such circumstances aforementioned at least for a period of 2 years prior
to the appointment. Business relationship aforementioned includes trade transactions conducted in the normal
course of business for the purpose of engaging in rental business or property lease, transaction related to assets
or services or providing or receiving financial support by receiving or lending, guaranteeing, providing asset as
collateral for liabilities including other similar conduct resulting in the company or contract party having payment
liability obligation to the other party for value from 3% of company’s net tangible assets or from Baht 20 million
up whichever is the lower. The calculation of such debt obligation is to apply with procedure for calculation of
value of related party transaction as announced by the Securities Exchange of Thailand commission relating to
information disclosure and operations of listed entities concerning related party transactions by deduction. The
consideration for such debt obligation is to include also debt obligation occurred within one year prior to the date
having business relationship with the same party.

Not being or used to be auditor of the company, parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or legal entity which may have
conflicting interest, and not being major shareholders, director who is not independent director, management,
or managing partner of the audit firm having staff being auditor of the company, parent, subsidiary, affliate, or
legal entity which may have conflicting interest, except for having vacated from such position at least 2 years
prior to the appointment.

Not being or used to be service provider for any professions including legal counseling, or financial advisor
receiving service fees in excess of Baht 2 million per year from the company, parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or legal
entity which may have conflicting interest. Where the professional service provider is a legal entity to include
major shareholder, director who is not independent director, management, or managing partner of the professional
service provider as well except for having vacated from such circumstances for at least 2 years prior to the
appointment.

Not being directors appointed for the purpose of representing director of the company, major shareholders, or
shareholders related to major shareholders of the company.

Not having any other characteristics that will result in the director incapable of rendering independent opinion

relating to the operations of the company.

5. The Recruitment of the Audit Committee

For lack of recruitment committee, the Board of Directors or the shareholders’ meeting appoints Audit Committee

members each for a 2 years term. Committee members may be reappointed upon completing their service terms. Qualification

of the Audit Committee members is as prescribed by the Securities Exchange Commission as follows :

1)
2)

Appointed by the Board or the shareholders’ meeting as Audit Committee member.

Being independent director in accordance with definition and qualification of an independent director as prescribed

by the Securities Exchange Commission and must

2.1 Notbe directors assigned by the Board to make decision in operating business of the company, the parent,
subsidiary, affiliate, subsidiary at the same level or legal entity which may have conflicting interest and

2.2 Not be director of the parent, subsidiary, or subsidiary at the same level specifically for the listed entities

Having duties in the same manner as prescribed in the announcement of the Securities Exchange of Thailand

relating to qualification, and scope of duties of the Audit Committee.

Having knowledge, and experiences sufficiently to enable the performance of duties in the position of Audit

Committee member. It is required that at least one of the Audit Committee member must be knowledgeable and

sufficiently experienced to be able to perform the duties of reviewing reliability of financial statements.

6. Appointment of Management

Consideration for promotion or hiring of appropriate personnel to the position of Company management is the duties of the

Executive Committee.
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7. Appointment of Company Secretary

The Board of Directors appoints Company Secretary. In the event the Company Secretary left the position or no longer
capable of performing its duties, the Board shall appoint new Secretary within 90 days. The Board is authorized to assign any
director to perform the duties of Company Secretary in the interim period. The consideration for the selection of Secretary is
in accordance with qualification of company secretary as follows :

1) Individual performing the duties of company secretary must be
- Company director who may be executive director or non-executive director
- Individual from external entity such as law firm, audit firm or security company
- Employee or company official who will perform the duties of company secretary along with other duties of the
company
2) Educational background and experiences
- Knowledgeable about the core business, and operations of the company
- Knowledgeable about accounting, finance, general management, relevant law relating to the operations of the
company, good governance in accordance with good governance principle, and standard best practices
relevant to the business operations of the company
3) Beindependent in the decision making with objectivity without being influenced by any departments or anybody
within the entity
4) Being acceptable to the Board of Directors of the company
5) Having sound ethical conducts without blemish record

7.4 Supervision over the Operations of Subsidiaries and Affiliates

The company has no subsidiaries or affliates

7.5 Supervision of the Utilization of Insider Information

7.5.1 The prevention of directors and management utilizing insider for benefit in conflict with company’s interest,
the company has established policies monitoring conflict of interest by prohibiting Company directors, Management, and
employees engaging in any activities that may be in conflict with company’s interest for example resulting in company loss
of interest, pursuing self-interest from the company or pursuing benefit or equity holding in competing entity. The company
has established policies requiring directors and management disclosure of information and security holding in accordance
with Law and reported to the Board regularly, and disclosure of their own and related parties’ vested interests in business or
activities that may have conflicting interest with the company. The Board may then consider and determine truly for the best
interest of the company as a whole in which directors having vested interest may not get involved in the approval process.

The company has established policies for related party transactions requiring such activities to be considered thoroughly
by the Audit Committee. And if necessary, the transaction shall seek approval from the Board and at the shareholders’ meeting
including in compliance with regulation established by the Securities Exchange of Thailand with pricing and terms the same
as an outsider and disclosure of details, transaction value, contract party, reasoning and necessity of such transactions in
the Annual Report, and form 56-1.

During the year 2013 the Board has considered once - related party transactions, on 21 May 2013, the Board on its 3/2556
meeting considered company’s short term borrowings from individuals being major shareholders considered related party.

In consideration of the transaction, the company has acted in accordance with policy/procedure above and reported
details to the securities exchange within the time limit (details per section 10, Related Party Transactions)

7.5.2 On the supervision regarding utilization of insider information, the Company has policy related to safeguarding assets
that director and management must safeguard Company and client confidential information, not disclose insider information or
exploit such information for their interest or interest of other. Furthermore, directors and management receiving Company financial
information must not utilize such information for their benefit prior to public disclosure in a manner considered to be advantageous
to other shareholders, and may have caused damages to shareholders as a whole. The Company has advised directors and
management to refrain from trading Company stocks for a period of 1 month prior to public disclosure of Company’s financial
statements. The Company has also advised directors and management about their duties in reporting Company securities holding
including the changes on their holding within 3 days to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Article 59 and penalty
clause, Article 275 of the Securities, and Securities Exchange Act 2535. The company has presented the report on security

holding as an agenda for acknowledgement at the Board meeting quarterly.
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The Company has established disciplinary penalty for those who exploit Company insider information or disclosing
such information which may have caused damage to the Company, by considering disciplinary action on a case by case
basis as outlined in the Company rules. Throughout the past directors and management have strictly complied with such

policies without Company stock trading in the restricted period.

7.6 Audit Fees

Fiscal Year Audited Year 2011 Year 2012 Year 2013
Name of audit firms DIA International Co., Ltd. DIA International Co., Ltd. ' DIA International Co., Ltd.
. . Miss Somijintana Mrs. Suvimol Mrs. Suvimol
Individual Auditors
Polhiranrat Krittayakiern, Krittayakiern,
Years auditing the Company 5" Year 1 Year 2" Year

Completed 5 years of
Reason for auditor change
audit for the Company

Audit Fee Baht 755,000 755,000 755,000

Allowance, traveling expense

None None May be
for upcountry branch audit
Non audit fee Baht
Amount paid during fiscal year None None None
Amount payable in the future None None None

7.6.1 Audit Fees
The Company has no subsidiaries. The Company paid audit fees to DIA International Co., Ltd. which is the audit

firm where the auditor attached to for fiscal year 2013 amounted to Baht 755,000.

7.6.2 Non-audit fees
There has been no non-audit fee paid to other individuals or entities related to the auditor, and the audit firm in which the

auditor is attached to whatsoever.
7.7 Good governance practices in other matters in accordance with The SET guidelines

In the operations of the company, the Board, management, and all employees have their conviction in good governance
principle, employing their knowledge, competent, and experiences with honesty, and perseverance, to enable efficient
business expansion with transparency, being responsible to all stakeholders, and society at large. The Board has prepared
good governance policies, business ethics, codes of conduct for directors, management, and employees, and ensured
information disclosure with transparency, fair treatment with all stakeholders, recognizing the importance of internal control,
internal audit and risk management. The Board has complied with best practices for listed entity directors, with regular
meetings, supervising shareholders’ meeting, recognizing right and benefit of shareholders equally. The Company has been
operating in compliance with good governance principle continuously. The company has been assessed relating to entity

governance rating at the level of ‘Very Good’, and quality of meeting of shareholders also at ‘Very Good'.
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For the year 2013, the company continues to practice good governance principle in 5 categories as follows :

7.7.1 The Rights of Shareholders

(1) Policy related to Upholding Shareholders’ Right

The company has established policies upholding shareholders’ right within its governance policies. Basic shareholders’

right concerns right regarding trading of shares, or share transfer, right of access to information related to operating results

regularly, accurate, complete, and timely, right to receive dividend from profit, right to attend shareholders’ meeting, express

opinion, appoint, remove directors, appoint auditor, and participate in consideration regarding the decision on major and

important changes including information regarding related party transactions.

(2) The Promotion of Shareholders’ Right
The company undertakes measures in supporting and facilitating upholding shareholders’ right, and to exercise their

rights, but to refrain from infringing on other shareholders’ right as follows :

During the year, the Company distributes essential information to shareholders concerning business operations, results
of operation, reports, financial statements, and related party transactions regularly with clarity and timely via the
channels provided by the securities exchange, and website of the Company.

The company arranges for shareholders’ meeting once on 19 April 2013. The company encourages shareholders
to participate in the meeting by submitting query in advance, express opinion, propose agenda of the meeting, and
propose candidate for consideration for appointment as director prior to the meeting date by informing all shareholders
via company’s website during 1 October 2012 until 28 December 2012.

In convening the shareholders’ meeting for the year 2013, the company has arranged for an appropriate date, time,
and venue of the meeting, provided information, objectives, and directors’ opinions of each agenda with clarity,
adequate for decision making.

The company encourages shareholders to exercise their rights in participating at the meeting. The company provides
opportunities for shareholders to assign other or designate an independent director as proposed by the company
as an alternative to attend on their behalf utilizing company prepared proxy document which have been forwarded along
with the invitation document. Shareholders may download such proxy document at company’s website.

Prior to the meeting the Chairman of the meeting explained the meeting rules, voting procedures, vote count of
shareholders for resolution passed for each agenda, and conduct of the meeting along with the established agenda
sequence without mediation, notincreasing agenda without prior notification, and permitting late comer to participate
in the meeting. The Chairman of the meeting provides shareholders with opportunities to enquire on matters regarding

operating results, express opinion and enquiry freely prior to voting on each agenda.

After the meeting the company reports resolutions passed and detailed dividend declared via the security exchange
channel promptly, timely, as well as preparing minutes of the meeting both Thai and English recording director
attendance, questions, and answers, vote procedure, vote count, votes for, against, or abstention for each meeting
agenda, submitting to the securities exchange of Thailand and relevant entities within 14 days, and publicizes the
information via company’s website to keep the un-attending shareholders informed, and reviewing information without

waiting for the next meeting to convene.

7.7.2 Equal Treatment with Shareholders

(1) Treatment with Minority Shareholders

The Board provides oversight for fair treatment equally to shareholders both being executive and non-executive

shareholders including foreign shareholders, majority, and minority shareholders to ensure that all shareholders entitled to their

benefits and their rights as shareholders equally. As presented in the shareholders’ right section, at the Annual General

Shareholders’ Meeting for the year 2013 the company performed the followings :

- Prior to the meeting date, the Company provides opportunities and right to minority shareholders to participate in
proposing meeting agenda, and candidates for the position of independent director in advance through the Company
website, by accepting such proposal during 1 October 2012 to 28 December 2012. Nonetheless during that time
period no such proposal was received.

- The Company facilitated foreign shareholder attendance by preparing relevant meeting document in English.
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- The Company facilitates shareholders who were unable to attend the meeting in person to assign others to attend
and vote on their behalf through submission of Proxy Type Gor, and Kor provided along with the meeting document.
Alternatively the Company proposed two independent directors namely Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan, Chairman of the
Audit Committee, or Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda, the Audit Committee member, to act under
proxy for shareholders.

- The Company publicized news and information regarding the meeting to shareholders in advance approximately
30 days prior to the meeting date via company website, and forwarded same by post 14 days prior to the meeting
date or allowing shareholders sufficient time to study content of the meeting document to support decision making.

- In consideration and voting on each agenda, vote count system is 1 share for 1 vote equally for all shareholders
with resolution passed generally according to majority vote. The Company utilizes vote card compiled from votes
‘against’ or ‘abstention” deducted from total eligible voters to derive at the votes ‘for’ the agenda being considered
and accordingly announced the resolution passed agenda by agenda for transparency and retained vote cards
for subsequent verification.

- The company provides shareholders’ right to all groups of shareholders letting them know the matters to be
considered including supporting information allowing sufficient time for decision on the meeting date. The Company
does not add other agenda not provided in the meeting document which may not be fair to non-attending and
non-executive shareholders.

- The Chairman of the meeting provides opportunities and time for all shareholders to have equal rights to express
opinion and enquire about operations of the company fully regardless of whether they are major or minor
shareholders as presented in the shareholders’ right section.

(2) The prevention of directors and management exploiting insider information with conflict of interests

The company has established policies for director and management to disclose individuals and related parties with
vested interests in transactions and entities which may have conflicting interests with that of the company, and related directors
must not be involved in the approval of such transactions (details per section 7. Corporate Governance, item 7.5.1 the
prevention of director, and management exploiting insider information with conflict of interests)

(3) Supervising utilization of insider information

The company has policies regarding safeguarding and protection of utilizing insider information in writing, and informing
director and management to report security holding in accordance with law and submitting to the Board of Directors regularly,
and prohibiting trading of company securities for a period of 1 month prior to public disclosure of financial statements (details

per section 7. Corporate Governance, item 7.5.2, supervising utilization of insider information)

7.7.3 Consideration of the Role of Stakeholders

(1) Preparation of policies and practices

The company engages in its business recognizing its responsibilities toward all groups of stakeholders namely shareholders,
creditors, trading partners, customers, competitors, public sector, employees, and the business society of the company.The
company recognizes the protection and taking care of the right of all stakeholders fairly both legally or under agreement with
the company. The company established policies related to stakeholders within its business ethics (details shown on company’s
website) and publicizes such policies for management and employee acknowledgement, and adhering to, coupled with other
operating rules and procedures. The company is confident that it conducts its business fairly and discloses relevant information to
stakeholders adequately for efficient participation enhancing a solid and sustainable growth. Treatment with various stakeholders

may be summarized below :

Treatment with shareholders : The company operates with continuing profit providing dividend to shareholders appropriately
and regularly. During the year 2013, the company paid dividend from operating profit of 2012 at the rate of Baht 0.08 per share or
87.72% of net profit. The company delivers information, news to shareholders accurately, complete, and timely. The Company
promotes shareholders to exercise their right at the shareholders’ meeting (details in section related to policy to maintenance

shareholders’ right)

Treatment with creditors : The company has strictly complied with condition of lending in accordance with agreement with

bank creditor and other creditors to uphold the Company’s reputation and credibility.
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Treatment with trading partner : The Company maintains good relationship with motor vehicle dealers who are trading partners,

and complies with trade terms and condition appropriately recognizing the importance of credit consideration, and speedy payment.

Treatment with customers : The company emphasizes good service quality, and utmost customer benefit and satisfaction. The
company utilizes fair hire purchase contract, safeguarding customer’s right for vehicle utilization, receiving vehicle registration

under hire purchase, and information regarding vehicle characteristics, and quality factually, and complete to purchasers.

Treatment with competitors : The company emphasizes business ethics engaging in business professionally, not engaging

in misinformation or falsely accusing competitor, refraining from activities which may affect competition.

Treatment with Government : The company engages in business in full compliance with law and regulations of various

relevant supervisory entities providing full cooperation, supporting government entity when opportunities arise.

Treatment with employees : The company treats employees as valuable resources recognizing the importance of basic
human right, providing fair salary compensation administration, and other fringe benefits, arranging for working atmosphere
and environment conducive to office works considering safety, and hygiene, promoting employee knowledge and competence
development and enhancement, conduct strictly in compliance with relevant law and regulations, taking care of, and facilitating

employees to enjoy their rights equally and with fairness.
(Remarks : Treatment with stakeholders is reported partially in section 8. Corporate social responsibility)
(2) To Provide Opportunities for Stakeholders to Contact the Company

The Company aims to achieve all stakeholders satisfaction, and participating in monitoring the operations of the Company.
Stakeholders may contact the Company to express their opinion, provide lead, or complain both by letter to the Audit Committee,
the internal auditors, or Company Secretary per the provided address or via facsimile 02-641-5995 and company website

http//www.ecl.co.th which over the past year, the Company received no complaints from stakeholders.

7.7.4 Disclosure and Transparency
(1) Efficiency of Information Disclosure Process

Management undertakes to disclose complete and accurate, transparent and timely information in accordance with
requirement of the Securities Exchange Commission, and the Securities Exchange of Thailand. Disclosed information has
passed the review of the responsible individuals and with consent from the Chairman of the Executive Committee. During the
year 2013, the Company distributes information, both non-financial and financial quarterly, and annually, submitting information
relating to shareholders’ meeting in accordance with guidelines established by the securities exchange promptly without any

record of delay, and disclosed the various reports in the company’s website.
(2) Quality of Financial Report

The company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, with
appropriate selection of accounting policies consistently applied, and with careful judgment, including sufficient disclosure
of important information within the notes to financial statements. Such financial statements have been audited by independent
auditor in collaboration with internal auditor, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Board is confident that information

provided in the financial statements are accurate and reliable.
(3) Investor Relation

On the investor relation function, the Company has assigned the Chairman of the Executive Committee to perform the
duties of disseminating information and liaise with institutional investors, shareholders, including stock analysts, and
government entities concerned. The activities in this area have yet to be intensive and investors may contact for information
at phone numbers 02-641-5252 or at the company’s website http:/www.ecl.co.th. During 2013, the Chairman of the Executive
Committee has presented financial information and results of operation to analyst, investors, and shareholders via phone,

interviewing, and participating in stock market activities from time to time.
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(4) The functioning of the Board and Sub-Committees

The administrative structure of the Company comprises the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Executive
Committee, and Management staff. The Board consists of 9 directors of whom 3 are Audit Committee members, and 3 are
executive directors (name list and authority of the three committees are described per section 6.1 Board of Directors, and
7.2 sub-committees) (details on management, and individuals with control interests are disclosed per Attachment 1)

There were 5 Board of Directors’ Meetings during the year 2013 to approve quarterly audited financial statements, consider
establishing policies and Company’s business plan, control and supervision of the administration and management of the
Executive Committee as well as consideration of transactions which might have caused conflicting interests.

The Board has scheduled meetings at least quarterly with special session as necessary with clear advance agenda
and regular follow-up agenda on operating results. Invitation letter along with meeting agenda and meeting documents are
prepared and forwarded 7 days in advance prior to the meeting date so directors have sufficient time to study the information
prior to the meeting date. During the meeting the Chairman encourages careful exercise of judgment. Minutes are recorded
in writing and retained as approved by the Board of Directors readily available for directors or relevant party examination.

Board attendance by individual director in 2013 is summarized below :

9-Director 3-Member 3-Member Annual
Board Executive Audit General
Name Position 5 Meetings Committee Committee Shareholders’
during the 20 Meetings 5-Meetings Meeting
year during the year | during the year = (9 individuals)
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong The Chairman of the Board 3 1
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Executive Director 4 20 1
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Executive Director 5 20 1
4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol Executive Director 5 20 1
5. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa Independent Director 5 1
6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa Independent Director 5 1
7. Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan Chairman of the Audit Committee 5 5 1
8. Police Lieutenant General Audit Committee Member 5 5 -
Amporn Charuchinda 9.
9. Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, PhD Audit Committee Member 3 3 1

There were 5 Audit Committee meetings during the year 2013 including one meeting with the absence of management.
Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, is knowledgeable, and experienced sufficiently to perform
the duties of reviewing reliability of financial statements. Mr. Phiphat acted as Chairman for all Committee meeting. The Audit
Committee organized meeting with external and internal auditors to review company’s financial reports, internal audit report,
considered and proposed external auditor, internal auditor, audit fees, and related party transactions. The Committee assessed
system of internal control, reviewed risk management, and supervised the administration and management of the Executive
Committee.

There were 20 Executive Committee meetings. The Committee convenes at least once a month at the beginning of
the month and extra-ordinary meeting may be called as necessary to consider marketing plan, credit approval, approval
of rules and procedures, and supervision of the operations of various departments in the normal course of business of the
Company etc. Meeting minute is prepared for each meeting and presented to the Audit Committee and internal auditor as
basis for operational audit, timely monitoring the continuing operation of management. The Executive Committee consists of
8 members of whom 3 individuals are executive directors, and 5 are management staff (name list and authority of the Executive
Committee is described in section 7.2.1 Executive Committee).
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The Executive Committee appointed two sub-committees namely the Sub-Committee for Asset Appraisal, and the
Sub-Committee for Risk Management

The Sub - Committee for Asset Appraisal comprises executive committee member, head of credit department, and
head of the collection department totaling 8 individuals performing the duty of valuation of vehicle, and administer disposal
of repossessed vehicles jointly regularly on a weekly basis, with meeting at least once a month.

The Sub - Committee for Risk Management comprises executive committee member, management, and heads of all
departments totaling 10 individuals performing the duties

- consider and identify risks corresponding with policies, annual business strategies covering various risks for example
marketing, liquidity, and other operational risks etc.

- establish preventive measures and manage overall risks, and prepare annual risk management policy manual at
the beginning of the year, submit to the Executive Committee in order to further submit to the Board of Directors via
the Audit Committee.

- assess, monitor, and control risks at the appropriate level at all times, and submit process improvement recommendation
and corrective action to the Executive Committee for action quarterly

- prepare result of risk management quarterly, submit to the Executive Committee in order to submit to the Board of
Directors via the Audit Committee

(5) Disclosure of Directors, Management Compensation, and Audit Fee

Director Compensation

The company does not have a sub-committee for compensation, the process to consider an appropriate level of
compensation for the Board and management is based on comparison with compensation for board of directors of companies
in the same industry with similar size, and results of operations, with proposed compensation for the Board, and the Audit
Committee submitted for approval at the shareholders’ meeting. During 2013, a limit of Baht 3 million was approved with
appropriation among directors and management at the discretion of the Board in the form of monthly compensation, and
meeting fees.

(details disclosed in section 6.4 Director and Management Compensation)

Executive Compensation

The Board is responsible for consideration of the executive compensation on the basis of their responsibility, performance,
and operating results of the company (detailed compensation disclosed in Director and Management Compensation section 6.4).

Auditor Compensation

(details disclosed in section 7.6 auditor compensation)
7.7.5 Board Responsibility

(1) The Board'’s Independence from Management

The Board of Directors comprises 9 directors broken down into :

Name Executive Non - Executive Independent The Audit
Directors Directors Directors Committee
1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong /
2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong /
3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong /
4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol /
5. Mr. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa / /
6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa / /
7. Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan / / /
8. Police Lieutenant General / / /
Amporn Charuchinda
9. Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, PhD / / /
Total 3 persons 6 persons 5 persons 3 persons
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» Executive directors 3 persons representing one-third of all directors

» Non-Executive directors 6 persons representing two-third of all directors

* Independent directors 5 persons representing 55.56% of all directors including 3 members of the Audit Committee
representing one-third of all directors

» Background and positions held at other companies appeared in Attachment 1, and 2

The company has isolated the positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Executive Committee
both assumed separate duties by separate individuals with clear isolated authority. There is no unlimited authority in any
single individual. Nonetheless, both represent the same major shareholders namely the Veerapong Family with shareholding
approximately 40% as at 31 December 2013. To achieve the balance of authority, and management review, the Board structure
includes independent directors accounting for more than half the total number of directors.

The Company arranges for the system that segregates duties and responsibility between Management and the Board
with clarity by forming two committees namely the Executive Committee, and the Audit Committee. The Executive Committee
is responsible for the day to day operations of the Company including monitoring and appraising operating results and reports
its activities to the Board. The Audit Committee has duties to review operations of the Company, review financial statements,
and arranges for the system of internal control and internal audit etc. and reports to the Board. The Audit Committee members

are concurrently independent directors.

The Company’s 5 independent directors have qualification in accordance with requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and the Securities Exchange of Thailand (the company defined independent directors with
qualification equivalent to SEC requirement, with details described within Recruitment of Director and Management, Section 7.3)
and performed their duties and responsibilities with complete independence with care and responsibility, help supervise
company’s operations continuingly. There has been no independent director having business relationship with another entity
that may have conflicting interest with the company or having the nature that may impede application of independent judgment

whatsoever.

(2) The Appropriateness of the Board
The Board comprises directors with wide range of qualification both in skill and experiences, and specific area of
competence beneficial to the Company including dedication of adequate time to perform their duties to fulfill their responsibilities

fully. The Board felt that the 9 directors are sufficient and the structure appropriate.

(3) Role and Responsibility of the Board

- The Board arranges for the establishment of oversight policies, business ethics, and code of conducts for directors,
executives and employees (details in section 7.1, Governance Policies)

- The Board provided guideline, established policies, participated and providing concurrence in establishing
direction, strategic objective in business undertaking, financial objective, the Company’s overall risk exposure
with careful consideration of economic, business, political and social environments which would be carried out
early in the year.

- The Board arranges for the establishment of system of internal control, internal audit, and quarterly report to the
Board. The Board selects IVL Audit to perform the duty as internal auditor and to provide recommendation for
corrective action to rectify control weaknesses. IVL is not the company’s external auditor, is independent to report
audit results directly to the Audit Committee. IVL performs audit providing assurance that the core operations,
and important financial activities of the company are conducted in accordance with guidelines, and efficiently
including operational audit, law and regulation compliance relevant to the company.

- The Board arranges for the establishment of the risk management system. The Board encourages for preparation
of Risk Management Policy Manual establishing overall entity risk management and report to the Board on a

quarterly basis (details presented in section 9. Internal control and risk management)
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- On related party transaction or transaction that may have conflicting interest, the Board provides clear policies
and guidelines, in careful consideration for the interest of the Company and shareholders as a whole. Individuals
with conflicting interest do not participate in the decision making process relating to such transactions. The Board
provides oversight to ensure compliance with the rules, and accurate and complete disclosure.

- The Board supervises the Management to establish control on its operations both at Management and operational
levels. To enhance efficiency, the company has established duties, authority of operational staff, and management
in writing with clarity. There is control on utilization of company’s assets productively, segregation of duties among
operational, supervisory, and assessment staff to achieve appropriate check and balance. In addition, there
is internal control relating to financial management. The company arranges to have system of financial reporting

for each functional management.

Management is responsible for the Company's operating result, and to prepare on a quarterly basis - financial report.
The Audit Committee is to review financial report in coordination with the external auditor, and the internal auditor, and submit
for approval with the Board. The Audit Committee and internal audit have organized meeting without the presence of

management at least once a year.
(4) Self-Assessment

The Board supervises directors and executives to undertake self-assessment, to be performed individually, and assess
the Board as a whole annually. Result of the assessment reflects efficiency of entity governance process and is informative
about operational issue with clarity. This is to enable the Board to jointly consider operating result and issue for process

improvement continuously.
(5) Director and Management Development

When there is new director appointment, Company Secretary and Board Secretary shall coordinate in providing
documents and information to the new incumbent director for acknowledgement and understanding its duties, and
responsibilities of directorship of a listed entities in accordance with Securities, and Securities Exchange Act, including laws,
and policies in various aspects of the company’s operations for preparedness and be capable of performing its duties namely
director’'s manual for listed entities, good governance principle, governance policy, Memorandum and Articles of Association,
information on audit report, results of operations, business plan, and overall picture of the company’s risk management for

example.

At the same time, the company recognizes the importance of curriculum required by the SEC for training enrolment by
the Board, encouraging director, all member of the Audit Committee enroll in the curriculum arranged by the IOD in order to
bring the acquired knowledge and experience to apply and develop the company for such courses as Director Certification

Program (DCP), Director Accreditation Program (DAP), and the Audit Committee Program (ACP)

Furthermore, the company encourages facilitating directors, Audit Committee members, Management, Company
secretary, and relevant employees to have opportunities to participate in the various training programs regularly for their
benefit in the performance of their duties for continuing professional development for example current changing rules and
regulations, good governance principles, and ethics, with additional development training via the hire purchase business
association, Federation of Accounting Professions, the SEC, and securities exchange, and other important curricular of the

Thai Institute of Directors Association.
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8. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The company operates with commitment in its vision, and aims at fulfilling its obligation.

as an expert in the used car hire purchase market, being a fair trade partner providing excellent service, and create
long term value add to stakeholders

to increase service potential to maintain competitive edge with conviction from quality employees, modern technology,
and aim toward good governance

to provide utmost satisfaction to customers, and highest return to all stakeholders with fairness and responsible to
society at large

to treat customer fairly regarding merchandize, and service without bias

In practice, it may be concluded that the company is mindful of the entity’s social responsibility guideline prepared by

the Security Exchange of Thailand with principles summarized below :

1.

To engage in business with fairness

The company engages in business with business competent, ethical conduct, and individual relationship, with relevant
entities namely shareholders, customers, trade partners, competitors, creditors, and public sector entities.

The company maintains ethics in treatment against relevant parties in writing (appeared in company website
www.ecl.co.th)

The company engages in business with due care, honesty, creating sound business growth, value add to shareholders,
upholding shareholders’ right, and appropriating benefit fairly.

The company provides hire purchase contract with appropriate terms and conditions, and fair to customers, respects
the right of customers to occupy and use the vehicle, and to receive vehicle registration under hire purchase.

In purchasing vehicles from dealers for vehicle hire purchase finance for customers, the company selects high standard
used vehicle dealers with sound financial position, offering to sell quality vehicle with appropriate price. The company
treats trade partners fairly in accordance with trade terms, emphasizing credit extension, and speedy payment, aiming
at creating good customer relationship, to maintain its market, for utmost mutual benefits consistent with moral value
or adversely affecting company’s reputation.

The company treats competitor fairly within the framework of good competition, without impeding fair competition,
market dumping, reduction of interest rate, over services, defamation of competitors by slandering. Company employees
should refrain from vying for customers or criticism relating to interest rate, fee, or business plan related to other hire
purchasing company in the market which may affect competition. Over the years, the company has not encountered
any dispute with competitor.

The company strictly complies with lending condition in accordance with terms and condition with bank creditor e.g.
covenant on maintaining debt to equity ratio of 3:1. The company repays loan and interest punctually without delay.
The company submits financial reports to banks promptly on a quarterly basis.

On public sector entities, the company complies with law and regulation of relevant supervisory entities namely the
Ministry of Commerce, the Revenue department, the Securities Exchange Commission, the Securities Exchange of
Thailand, Department of Land Transport, Office of the Consumer Protection Board. The company is fully co-operative

and supportive of public policy beneficial to society and recognizes involvement and contribution to responsible politics.

. Anti-Corruption

The company maintains policies against corruption practices announced in the company’s business ethics, as

presented in company website www.ecl.co.th. The policy serves as behavioral guideline for employee, and management.

The company promotes and cultivates employees and management to work diligently with honesty, emphasizes public

interest on every step of its operations, eliminates wrong self-interest value system, lack of respect for rules and ethics, and

morality, and aims at managing business growth on a sustainable basis. Over the long term, by complying with relevant rules,

established mechanism for accurate financial reporting, transparency, conviction against fraud, bribery, demanding, receiving,

and anti-corruption practices with internal audit as tools against wrongful behavior. The company refrains from involving in

activities leading to public or private sector corruption. The company is co-operative and supportive to government and
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

private sectors measures against corruption.The company is in process of announcing its intent to participate in the alliance
of the Thai private sector practice against corruption project (Collective Anti-Corruption: CAC) in early 2014. As for the year
2013 the company has cooperated with the Anti-Money Laundering Office by preventing and prohibiting financial support to

terrorism activities as announced in the company operating procedures.
3. Respect for Human Right

The company recognizes the respect for human right namely respect for human life and dignity being the foundation
for management and development of human resources which is an important factor for the entity to create value add, productivity,

ability to compete, and to prosper in all facets of the company and the nation.

- The company maintains human right policies in writing and treats relevant employees, community, and society with
respect for human value, recognizing the life of one another, providing due care for each other against distress
which is the foundation for living. The company maintains privacy for personal information, supports employees to
exercise their right as good citizens in accordance with the institution, and law.

- The company supervises its business and employees not to cause problem which may infringe on human right.

- The company promotes and provides opportunities for employees, community, and society to participate in expressing
opinion when the entity or its employees may have caused infringement, reflecting issue and joint resolution for

mutual benefit.
4. Fair treatment with employee

The company engages in business in compliance with labor law, human right principle, and ethics recognizing the

basic right of labor force to choose employment based on individual desire, and in a good and fair working environment.,

- The company shall not be bias on employment, provide opportunities for employee learning, development, enhancing
potential, and promotion when opportunities arise appropriately and equally, assessing work procedures, and
appraisal regularly, not dismiss or terminate employment based solely on management decision or decision on the
basis of discrimination.

- The company shall not encourage force labor, force overtime work in exchange for not being punished or pay deduction.

- The company permits independence in expressing opinion, arranges for channel of communication to receive opinion
or petition from employees, accepts and acknowledges welfare board established by employees in accordance with
objective for mutual negotiation, provides important information to employees and their representatives results of
operations, and actual status of the entity including appropriate information within reasonable time upon changes
within the entity.

- The company arranges for fair terms of employment. Employees receives appropriate compensation in accordance
with potential, reasonable payment, and overtime pay, with weekly holiday, annual leave, maternity leave, in which
employees may realize their highest potential and concurrently having allocated time for family.

- The arranges for the welfare board, social security, provident fund, health insurance, life and accidental insurance,
multi-purpose loan for example which the company has strictly complied with all relevant laws and regulation relevant
to welfare. The company facilitates and takes care of employees so they benefit from those rights fairly, and equally.

- The company provides health care and work safety. The company arranges for working environment with atmosphere
conducive to working considering hygiene, safety to life, and assets belong to employees, good quality of life, and
opportunities to realize their potential, including upkeep of the adjacent building and space safe from danger, and

clean and free from disease.
5. Responsibilities toward consumers

- The company policies regarding customer treatment and product quality are for credit extension and after sale service,
the company emphasizes good services, aimed at maximizing customer benefit and satisfaction, speedy and efficient
customer services, safeguarding customer confidentiality, and not exploiting customer information for one’s own

interest or for the wrongful interest of other.
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- Inthe disposal of company asset, vehicle price is set reasonably with information provided regarding characteristics
and quality of vehicle truthfully and complete to purchaser sufficiently for decision making without bias or omission
of important information which may have caused customer misunderstanding regarding quality or other conditions
of the vehicles or registration.

- The company arranges for complaint channel regarding quality of merchandize and services or stakeholder having
interest in the supervision of the company by contacting the company, complaining, expressing opinion, providing
lead including mail to the member of the Audit Committee, internal auditor, or company secretary at the company
address or by facsimile 02-641-5995 and company website http//www.ecl.co.th which over the past year has not
received any customer or other stakeholder complaints.

6. Preservation of environment

The company recognizes that the business engagement resulted in adverse impact against the environment for
example creating pollution, smoke from vehicle exhaust, depleting resources, the increase in global warming which may have
caused destruction of natural environment. The company should therefore improve, rectify, develop processes capable of
reducing impact, protect and restore the environment to its original form, to enhance value, and create peacefulness for the
company, the society, the community and the people at large.

The company cultivates its employees to consider utilization of office equipment, water resource, electricity,
telephone, air-conditioning, paper document efficiently, with frugality, and worthwhile, reduction of utilization of certain solution
and chemical which may cause pollution, improve on dressing or uniform appropriate with the global warming situation,
use products which are friendly to the environment, recognize the importance activities regarding the environment which
employees of the company have participated in the rally for the conservation of the natural environment by help collecting
garbage at the sea shore.

7. Participating in community and society development

The company has social responsibility policy to the society and the public at large namely being responsible and
adherence to local culture and tradition where the company is located, participating in activities constructive to the community
regularly to improve quality of life both undertaken by the company itself, and in cooperation with the public sector and the
community, rapid and efficient response to situation which may impact on the environment and the community with full
cooperation with government official and relevant entity.

The company always supports activities constructive to the society. The company encourages employee consciousness
in performing public service, promotes and supports education, religion, ethics, and good health. The company donated
money to Sosa Foundation which is an orphanage continuingly over the past 3 years. The company and employee jointly
donated money for the construction of a Buddhist temple, thus helped maintenance of the Buddhism religion, participating
in blood donation and other activities at the Rama IX Hospital.

8. Having innovation and dissemination of innovation derived from responsible operations toward society,
environment, and stakeholders

The conduct of hire purchase business relates to social development by promoting quality of life for people of the society
namely providing financial support to people having the opportunities to purchase vehicles with their own repayment capability,
for enjoyment, for business conduct, and lifting level of life quality. The company is not the manufacturer of merchandize
friendly to the environment, creating value add to economy and the society. But the company capitalizes on its knowledge and
experiences in its operations, including appropriate method and worthwhile resource utilization, creating sustainable business
and society. The company has reviewed its work process, and services to enhance efficiency. The company works with
insurance company, a trading partner, encourages customers engaging in hire purchase finance to purchase vehicle insurance
against repair or substituting fund upon occurrence of vehicle accidents. The company works with life insurance company, a
trading partner, encourages hire purchase finance customers to purchase life insurance to protect against vehicle credit by
having the life insurance company taken over the obligation for repayment of all hire purchase debt outstanding in the event
the hirer is handicapped or died. The company improves on customer record retention by retaining scanned copy soft file
stored in the computer reducing paper consumption, improves on reduction of the credit analysis process rendering speedy
payment. The company works with bank to reduce check writing by utilizing electronic fund transfer. All these processes
have been continuingly developed becoming standard operating procedures considered innovative having improving service
efficiency valuable to society and enhancing value add to the company.
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9. INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The company arranges for the system of internal control covering all aspects of operations — financial, operational,
and compliance in accordance with rules, and relevant law, in accordance with the COSO internal control framework consisting

of 5 elements namely :
1. Control Environment

The company arranges for the entity’s organizational structure corresponding with the nature of business including
preparation of business ethics, written operating procedures, appropriate segregation of duties and responsibilities, clear
reporting line to enable check and balance. The Board is independent in performing entity oversight, establishes clear business
objectives, reasonably achievable, measurable as guidelines and incentive for management and employee performance.
The company assigns duties and responsibilities appropriately corresponding with knowledge and competence emphasizing
honesty, and ethics supporting employees with responsibilities, knowledge, skill, and experiences in each job position to the
realize full capabilities, with policies for development and retention of quality employees and management staff by providing

various incentives appropriate for the entity.
2. Risk Assessment

The company prepares ‘Risk Management Policies Manual’ coupled with operational objective each year, assess
important risks arising from internal and external, including assessment consideration for fraud opportunities which may affect
business operation of the company. Risk assessment is conducted at operational level performed by employees and at the
entity level supervised by management. The company provides opportunities for employee participation in risk assessment
and informing relevant employees for acknowledgement, and adherence to established risk management measure. The
sub-committee for risk management monitors risk management plan and reports results to the Board quarterly in order to
prevent possible loss that may occur in the operating system, as well as promoting efficient operation, and achievement of

established objective.
3. Control Activities

The company disseminates and delegates authorities to management to perform on behalf of the Managing Director
in the area of credit extension, disbursement, collection, and purchasing etc. by preparation of delegation of authorities for
example signature, scope of authority, amount limit for management at each level with clarity in order to achieve operational
flexibility, with clear segregation of duties and responsibilities in the approval process, recording of accounting transaction,
and access to information, and duties in safeguarding assets, with compliance audit by internal auditor regularly, retention
of information regarding major shareholders, directors, management, and related parties to such individuals for the benefit
of following up, and review of transactions which may have conflicting interests, with approval consideration procedures
for transactions with aforementioned major shareholders or individuals etc. conducted considering the best interest of the

company as if engaged with external parties without individual with vested interest participating in the approval process.
4. Information & Communication

The company arranges for information technology communicating with all job positions within the organization
accurately and timely, applying accounting policies in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, recording
of accounting transactions, and document retention in accordance requirement of the law, sufficient important information
communication for the Board of Directors supporting decision making, convening meeting between the Audit Committee
with external auditor, and internal auditor quarterly. The company has communication system preparing operational report
to the securities market timely. In communication with stakeholders, the company assigns the Chairman of the Executive
Committee to disseminate information in contact with institutional investors, shareholders, including analysts, and relevant public
sector entities. Because such activities are not intensive, investors may contact for information or stakeholders may submit

complaint or providing lead regarding fraud at phone number 02-641-5252 or at company website https : //www.ecl.co.th.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



5. Monitoring
The company convenes the Executive Committee meeting regularly once a month to assess monthly performance
of the company including corrective action consideration, establish rules and procedures of each department or modify
policies corresponding with circumstances. As for the operational audit in compliance with system of internal control and
risk management, the internal auditors will conduct follow-up audit monthly including providing advices in various aspects
to achieve assurance that all departments maintain good internal control and preform in accordance with objective of the

company, and report audit results to the Audit Committee, and the Board quarterly.

9.1 The Board’s Opinion on System of Internal Control

At the first Board meeting on 27 February 2014, the Board assessed the system of internal control based on the Audit
Committee report and concluded on the basis of control assessment of the 5 components namely entity internal control, risk
assessment, operational control, information technology and information communication, and monitoring.

The Board is of the opinion that the company’s system of internal control regarding transaction with major shareholder,
executive director, or related parties to such individuals (per section 10.1 - 10.4, and 12.1 - 12.4 of the assessment form)

was adequate. As for control in other topics, the Board is of the opinion that the company also has adequate control.

9.2 Regarding Control Assessment Above

Independent Director or Audit Committee Member has no additional observation from the Board and the external auditor,
Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern who performed quarterly and annual audit for the year 2013, has no express opinion in the audit

report that there was weakness in system of internal control.

9.3 Head of Internal Audit Function

1. The company outsources internal audit function to IVL Audit Co., Ltd. to perform internal audit activities by
Miss. Valdee Sibunrueang as designated by IVL Audit Co., Ltd. to perform such duties with background information
of the individual per attached document.

2. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that qualification of Miss. Valdee Sibunrueang, individual in charge of internal
audit, is suitable to perform such duties efficiently.

3. The appointment, removal of audit firm performing internal audit requires approval of the Audit Committee.
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

10.1 Summary of related party transactions between the Company and individuals or entities who might have

conflicting interests during the years 2012, and 2013

(1) Asset Lease

Individuals or

Entities /Relationship

Mr. Danucha
Veerapong,
Relationship

the lessor,

is Company
director, and

the Chairman

of the Executive
Committee holding
6.09% of ECL

Remarks :

Individuals or

Entities /Relationship

Hitech Land Co., Ltd
Relationship

Its major
shareholders are

Mr. Danucha, and
Mr. Prapakorn
Veerapong in
aggregate held

27% of the company,

who are the Chairman

of the Executive
Committee, and MD
of ECL respectively,
holding jointly
11.54% of ECL

*k

Remarks

*** Baht 254 per square meter is an appraised averaged lease rental rate, appraised by Prospect Appraisal Co., Ltd.

Description of Transactions

Land lease title deed 40098
located at Sub-District
Wangtonglang, Bangkapi
District, Bangkok, area of
275 square wah utilized

as parking space and for
repossessed vehicles
auction and other purposes
with tenor of 3 years from 17
August 2012* to 18 August
2015 Monthly rental Baht
48,505.26 U

Description of Transactions

Office space lease on Floor
1 of a building located at
728/10, Sukhumvit Rd,
Bangprasoi Sub-District,
Muang District, Cholburi
Province, area of 244.05
square meters for use as
branch office with tenor of
3 years from 1 June 2011**
to 31 May 2014, 1* Year
rental monthly Baht
27,852.63*** 2" year
rental Baht 29,245.26,

3“ year rental

Baht 30,707.37

Transaction value in Baht

2013

1,746,189.36

2012

1,746,189.36

* The transaction has been approved by the Board of Director (4/2555)

Transaction value in Baht

2013

1,053,663.12

2012

1,053,663.12

The transaction has been approved by the Board of Director (2/2554)

Pricing Policy

Rent is
reasonable in
line with market
or fair value,
contract terms
same as other

lessee

Pricing Policy

** 3-year lease
average Baht
103.51-114.12
per square
meters lower
than Baht 254
average
estimated lease
rental *** Other
lease term
same as other

lessee

dated April 30, 2004, and Siam Appraisal and Service Co., Ltd. dated May 6, 2008

(2) Borrowing :

During the year 2013, the Company borrowed short term loan from individuals who were shareholders, and relatives

of shareholders by issuing fixed period short term bill of exchange with tenor of 180 days with said shareholder detailed as

follows :

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
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Reason and

necessity

The company
needs land
space to
conduct
business and
distance not

far from office

Reason and

necessity

The company
needs office
space for
branch setup
for business
development
and no other
appropriate

building



Borrowing Transaction Size (Baht million) Borrowing Continually

Related Parties

. B Additional D Interest Interest paid TS
an epal borrowing ec Rate whole year ErEpEt
31 Dec 13
Mr. Preecha Veerapong,
a7 117 105 35 4.25-3.75 1,387,370.86 545,715.31

holding 20.35%
Mr. Wara Tantraporn,

. ) 5 10 10 ® 4 128,390.66 67,160.97
relative to major shareholders
Miss Vittra Tantraporn,

) ) 5 10 10 5 4 128,390.66 67,160.97
relative to major shareholders
Mr. Bancha Tantraporn,

) ) ® 10 10 ® 4 128,390.66 67,160.97
relative to major shareholders
Mrs. Sumalee Veerapong,

. ) 20 40 40 20 4 485,623.64 296,582.85
relative to major shareholders
Miss. Varich Tantraporn,

10 20 20 10 4 236,360.09 155,796.72
relative to major shareholders
Remarks : - Approved by the Board, per BOD 3/2547

- Reviewed by the Audit Committee concerning related party transaction, per AC 3/2556 dated 21 May 2013

- Pricing policy : rate of interest payable lower than commercial bank lending rate on the B/E issued date with interest
payable on B/E issuance date, the same rate payable to external parties

- Reason and necessity : fund utilized as working capital without asset collateral

10.2 Necessity and Reasonableness of Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions have been reasonable with terms and conditions between parties established capable of
being compared with normal transactions with other entities without relationship. The Company anticipates that there may

be more of the related party transaction in this same nature, in the future.
10.3 Measures and the Approval Process for Related Party Transaction

Related party transactions are conducted primarily with due consideration for the interest of the Company. Considerations
include the reason, necessity, and compensation payment in accordance with market or fair value. The Audit Committee
shall consider and provide its opinion for said transaction and submit to the Board for consideration and approval. The Board

consideration shall exclude directors who have vested interest in the transaction.
10.4 Policy and Trend toward Related Party Transaction

In the future, for related party transactions with individuals or entities who may have conflicting interests or vested
interest, as a matter of policy, the Company shall request opinion from the Audit Committee as pertinent to the necessity, the best

interest to the Company of those transactions, the appropriateness of pricing, and the reasonableness of the transactions.

In the event the Audit Committee lacks the expertise in consideration of the related party transactions, the Company
shall seek opinion from independent subject matter expert or Company auditor for opinion on the transactions as well. This
opinion shall be submitted to assist the Board’s or the Shareholders’ decision making process as appropriate. Individuals

with vested interest in the transactions shall not authorize such transactions by themselves.

In conducting the transaction, the Company shall engage the transaction in accordance with the normal business
practices and in accordance with law and regulations of the security exchange including the rules on disclosure of related
party transactions and the acquisition or disposal of Company’s essential assets per accounting standards. The Company

shall disclose related party transactions in the Notes to Financial Statements as audited by Company auditor.
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11. IMPORTANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

11.1 Financial Summary Table

Unit : ‘000 Baht

2013 Audited 2012 Audited 2011 Audited
Assets
Cash and Deposit at Financial Institution 6116.66 0.33% 6,741.40 0.38% 3,284.66 0.23%
Hire Purchase Receivable - Net 1,645,947.46 87.86% 1,654,839.57 93.09% 1,300,059.62 91.74%
Short Term Investment 100,052.35 5.34% 0 0 0 0
Long Term Loan to Others 0 0 2,993.46 0.17% 5,689.78 0.40%
Sale w/Right of Redemption
Agreement Receivable - Net 57,989.05 3.10% 57,853.72 3.25% 61,212.56 4.32%
Property Foreclosed - Net 11,882.51 0.63% 14,845.34 0.84% 1,888.49 0.13%
Sundry Current Asset 9,899.16 0.53% 7,466.51 0.42% 10,169.10 0.72%
Land Building and Equipment Net 31,147.66 1.66% 32,772.37 1.83% 32,678.30 2.31%
Deferred Tax Asset 10,123.36 0.54% 0 0 0 0
Cash at Bank- with Commitment 120.00 0.01% 120.00 0.01% 120.00 0.01%
Other Non-Current Asset 123.11 0.01% 118.11 0.01% 1,997.26 0.14%
Total Assets 1,873,401.32 100.00% 1,777,750.48 100.00% 1,417,099.77  100.00%
Liabilities
Overdrafts 48,946.91 2.61% 50,896.78 2.85% 37,600.41 2.65%
Current Portion of Long Term Debt 501,110.00 26.75% 488,150.00 27.35% 353,051.40 24.91%
Short Term Loan 103,716.80 5.54% 115,371.22 6.46% 64,134.57 4.53%
Sundry Current Liabilities 18,645.04 1.00% 18,424.79 1.03% 15,027.56 1.06%
Long Term Debt 517,502.09 27.62% 630,360.00 35.32% 473,231.61 33.40%
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4,855.06 0.26% 4,998.27 0.28%
Total Liabilities 1,194,775.90 63.78% 1,308,201.06 73.29% 943,045.55 66.55%
Shareholders’ Equity
Share Premium 21,508.71 1.15% 21,508.71 1.21% 21,508.71 1.52%
Common Shares Issued and Paid Up 594,776.00 31.75% 410,000.00 22.97% 410,000.00 28.93%
Retained Earnings - Legal Reserve 17,013.46 0.91% 14,721.03 0.82% 12,851.36 0.91%
Un-appropriated Retained Earning 45,327.24 2.42% 30,470.97 1.71% 29,694.15 2.09%
Total Shareholders’ Equity 678,625.42 36.22% 476,700.72 26.71% 474,054.22 33.45%
Revenue
Hire Purchase Revenue 176,784.11 77.37% 154,159.83 75.65% 107,544.02 71.54%
Interest Under Sale W/Right 5,697.00 2.49% 6,599.46 3.24% 6,350.31 4.22%
Interest Income 496.30 0.22% 782.79 0.38% 1,015.55 0.68%
Other Income 45,517.15 19.92% 42,234.58 20.73% 35,408.63 23.56%
Total Revenue 228,494.56 100.00% 203,776.66 100.00% 150,318.51  100.00%
Expense
Operating Expense 87,740.02 38.40% 79,094.86 38.82% 73,627.98 48.98%
Financial Expense 68,727.20 30.08% 63,523.84 31.17% 40,081.08 26.66%
Provision for Bad Debt 9,981.55 4.37% 7,801.23 3.83% 1,163.35 0.77%
Bad Debt Expense 4,116.01 1.80% 3,382.82 1.66% 6,079.30 4.04%
Income Tax 12,081.08 5.29% 12,342.00 6.06% 7,791.62 5.18%
Total Expense 182,645.86 79.93% 166,144.75 81.54% 128,743.33 85.65%
Net Profit (Loss) 45,848.70 20.07% 37,631.91 18.46 21,575.18 14.35%
Net Profit per Share (Baht/Share) 0.1087 0.09.18 0.0526
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11.2 Statement of Cash Flow

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

2013 Audited

2012 Audited

Unit : ‘000 Baht

2011 Audited

Net Profit (Loss) Before Tax 57,929,778.30 49,973.91 29,366.80
Adjustment to Net Profit on Cash Receipt (Disbursement)
Depreciation and Amortization 20,123.19 17,561.72 14,078.47
Recovery -1,829.24 -1,333.96 -943.20
Bad Debts 4,116.01 3,382.82 6,079.30
Provision for Possible Loan Loss 9,981.55 7,801.23 1,163.35
Gain from Asset Sales -2,009.43 -921.75 -811.60
Loss from sale of repossessed asset 7,942.30 6,016.19 6,859.83
Impairment from Asset Foreclosed 3,704.68 -291.99 125.96
Employee benefit estimate 1,174.09 752.59 653.43
Interest Expenses 68,727.20 63,523.84 40,081.08
Profit (Loss) from Operations before Changes in
Operating Assets and Liabilities 169,807.79 146,464.60 96,653.42
Hire Purchase Receivable (increase) decrease -55,851.64 -418,186.54 -465,143.37
Sale w/Right of Redemption Receivable
(increase) decrease -135.60 3,449.34 -11,815.00
Long Term Loan Receivable (Increase) decrease 2.993.46 2,696.31 2,413.81
Loan to Related Entities (increase) decrease 0 0 0
Asset Foreclosed (increase) decrease 22,152.58 22,274.96 6,968.55
Other Current Asset (increase) decrease 4,088.88 3,961.65 5,524.74
Advance Receipt increase (decrease) 0 0 1,217.58
Other Current Liabilities increase (decrease) 129.59 958.28 1,944.71
Cash Provided from (Used in) Operating Activities 143,185.06 -238,381.40 -362,235.56
Interest Expenses -68,783.73 - 64,266.74 -39,823.78
Corporate Income Tax -14,708.58 -8,282.78 -4,269.20
Net Cash Provided (Used) in Operating Activities 59,692,748.28 -310,930.92 - 406,328.54
Cash from Investment Activities
Cash Paid for Short Term Investment -100,000.00 0 0
Cash Receipt from Sale of Equipment 3,218.13 5,646.61 4,651.75
Cash Paid for Purchase of Equipment -4,589.74 -11,129.72 -12,481.51
Cash at Bank - Cash Pledged (increase) decrease 0 0 -20.00
Net Cash Provided (Used in) Investing Activities -101,371.61 -5,483.11 -7,849.76
Cash from Financing Activities Increase (Decrease)
Overdrafts and borrowing from financial institution -1,949.88 13,296.37 4,100.45
Short term borrowings -12,000.00 52,000.00 45,000.00
Increase (Decrease) in Long Term Debt -101,072.00 291,474.40 379,200.40
Cash Dividend Paid -28,700.00 -36,900.00 -16,400.00
Proceeds from Stock sale 184,776.00 0 0
Net Cash Provided (Used in) Financing Activities 41,054.12 319,870.77 411,900.85
Cash or Cash Equivalent increase (decrease) -624.74 3,456.74 -2,277.45
Cash or Cash Equivalent as at 1 January 6,741.40 3,284.66 5,562.11
Cash or Cash Equivalent as at 31 December 6,116.66 6,741.40 3,284.66
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IMPORTANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

11.3 Important Financial Ratio table which reflect company’s financial position and operating result

2013 2012 2011
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Interest Income (%) 10.67% 10.46% 9.98%
Interest Expense (%) 5.62% 5.76% 5.64%
Net Interest Income (%) 5.05% 4.70% 4.34%
Net Profit Margin (%) 20.07% 18.46% 14.35%
Net Profit per Share (Baht/Share)* 0.1087 0.0918 0.0526
Return on Equity (%) 7.94% 7.88% 4.56%
EFFICIENCY RATIO
Return on Asset (%) 2.51% 2.34% 1.80%
Total Asset Turnover (Times) 0.12 0.13 0.13
Book Value per Share 1.14 1.16 1.16
FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO
Debt to Equity Ratio (Time) 1.75 2.76 1.99
Loan to Borrowing Ratio (Time) 1.40 1.40 1.62
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 48.60% 43.86% -
ASSET QUALITY RATIO
Provision for Possible Loan Loss to Gross Receivable (%) 2.31% 1.74% 1.62%
Bad Debt to Gross Receivable (%) 0.24% 0.19% 0.44%
Non-Performing Loan to Gross Receivable (%) 3.21% 2.45% 2.64%
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12. ANALYSIS AND EXPLANATION OF MANAGEMENT

12.1 Operating Results
* Overview

The Company extended new hire purchase credit during the year 2013 amounting to Baht 687.36 million, a decrease
of 29.83% over that of 2012. The decline in credit growth rate was a result of the Government’s first car policy adversely
affecting demand for used vehicles as well as the political conflict occurring toward the end of the year causing the slump

in the vehicle market.

As for floor plan finance, the Company has extended financing to dealer clients who are trading partners, and also

referring hire purchase customers to the Company.

The Company reported net profit of Baht 45.85 million, an increase of Baht 8.22 million or 21.84% over prior year.
This was attributable to the continuing increasing credit extension since the year 2011 until present year with good funding

support from commercial banks and car dealers.
» Revenue

Revenue was Baht 228.49 million, an increase of Baht 24.71 million or 12.13% over prior year. Hire purchase income
was Baht 176.78 million, an increase by Baht 22.62 million over prior year as a result of the continuing credit extension
throughout the year. The Company’s rate of interest receipt during the year 2013, and 2012 were 10.67, and 10.46% with net
interest margin of 5.05, and 4.70 respectively (details per Exhibit 11.1 Financial Summary Table, and 11.3 Important Financial
Ratios).

Rate of interest receipt and interest margin both rose during the year 2013 because of the maintenance of the normal

second hand hire purchasing rate, and the company’s credit extension has been able to achieve the stable or slightly higher

interest rate while financial institution lending rate has been adjusted downward slightly during the 4" quarter of the year.

Other income increase was attributable to credit extension, penalty and service fees arising from accelerated
collection, increasing recovery amounting to Baht 1.83 million increasing Baht 0.5 million from prior year as a result of the

legal department follow-up (details per exhibit 11.2 Statement of Cash Flow).
» Expenses
During the year 2013, the company’s total expenses amounted to Baht 182.64 million, increased by Baht 16.50 million

or 9.93% from Baht 166.14 million in 2012.

Operating and administrative expenses were Baht 87.74 million, an increase of Baht 8.65 million over prior year largely

as a result of the entity’s growing size, increasing personnel, and increase in other expenses as well.

Borrowing cost consisting of interest expense amounted to Baht 68.73 million, an increase of Baht 5.21 million or 8.20%
as a result of borrowings to support credit extension throughout the year while commercial bank rate adjusted downward
slightly. The Company’s borrowing rates during the years 2013 and 2012 were 5.62%, and 5.76% respectively (details per
Exhibit 11.3 Important Financial Ratio).

Bad debt written-off during 2013 amounted to Baht 4.12 million, increased by Baht 0.74 million from 2012 of Baht 3.38
million. The Company has filed suit accordingly and foreclosure of vehicles has been in process.

The Company has provided for increase in provision for bad debt by Baht 9.98 million during 2013 corresponding with
the substantial rising portfolio size. The Company has also considered establishing greater amount of provision for receivable

under legal execution.
Financial Position
» Total Asset

Total asset for the year 2011, 2012, and 2013 amounted to Baht 1,417.10, 1,777.75 and Baht 1,873.40 million

respectively. The increase of Baht 95.65 million for the year 2013 was attributable to the slacking of growth in the vehicle

sale market during the middle of the year.
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ANALYSIS AND EXPLANATION OF MANAGEMENT

Returns on Asset for the years 2011, 2012, and 2013 were 1.80%, 2.34%, and 2.15% respectively. ROA during the

year 2013 increased because of rise in net profit and increase in total asset as a result of the continuing credit expansion.

The company'’s net asset pending disposal was Baht 11.88, and 14.85 million for the year 2013 and 2012 respectively,
a decrease of Baht 2.97 million. The company estimated that disposal price would decline corresponding with the market

environment.

The company held short term investment amounting to Bah 100 million as derived from proceed of capital increase

pending credit extension and debt repayment.
» Quality of Receivable and Provision for Doubtful Debts

Receivables and provision for doubtful debts for the year 2012 and 2013 may be summarized below :

Baht Million 2013 2012
Hire Purchase Receivable 1,949.23 1,968.83
Deduct - Unearned Interest Income, and Brokerage Fee Undue (293.21) 306.38)
Hire Purchase Receivable Net of Unearned and Brokerage 1,656.02 1,662.45
Deduct - Reserve for Bad Debt (10.07) (7.61)
Net Hire Purchase Receivable 1,645.95 1,654.84
Sale with Right of Redemption Receivable 58.11 57.97
Deduct - Reserve for Bad Debt (0.12) (0.12)
Sale with Right of Redemption Receivable Net 57.99 57.85
ﬁ Term Loan Receivable to Other == 3.17

Receivable under litigation and compromising agreement for hire purchase, receivable with right of redemption, and

provision for doubtful accounts for the years 2012, and 2013 are summarized below :

Baht Million 2013 2012
Litigation in Process 30.26 22.50
Compromise Agreement 317 1.64
Total 33.43 24.14
deduct - Reserve for Bad Debt (29.84) (22.32)
Receivable - Net 3.59 1.82
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Details on Reserve for bad debt for hire purchase receivable as at the end of 2012, and 2013

Receivable Aging

Current

Overdue 1 month
Overdue 2-3 months
Overdue 4 months
Overdue 5 months
Overdue 6 months
Overdue 7 months
Overdue 8 months
Overdue 9 months
Overdue 10 months
Overdue 11 months
Overdue 12 months
Overdue more than 12 months

Total

Receivable Aging

Current

Overdue 1 month
Overdue 2-3 months
Overdue 4 months
Overdue 5 months
Overdue 6 months
Overdue 7 months
Overdue 8 months
Overdue 9 months
Overdue 10 months
Overdue 11 months
Overdue 12 months
Overdue more than 12 months

Total

Receivable Balance

1,076,060,849.60
306,783,729.05
228,941,194.51
21,566,270.43
6,953,380.30
4,531,670.17
1,984,397.67
4,485,948.19
892,227 .47
1,538,804.20
1,500,133.94
779,000.74

1,656,017,606.27

Receivable Balance

1,171,915,063.87
284,953,451.43
171,944,817.60
14,952,447.29
7,259,223.27
4,426,107.43
525,011.53
4,078,500.62
137,945.20
387,651.07
437,660.37
672,438.06
758,679.73

1,662,448,997.47

2013

Receivable Balance

Net of Collateral

215,212,169.92
61,356,745.81
45,788,238.90
4,313,254.09
1,390,676.06
906,334.03
1,389,078.37
3,140,163.73
624,559.23
1,077,192.94
1,050,093.75
779,000.74

337,027,477.57

2012

Receivable Balance

Net of Collateral

234,383,012.77
56,990,690.29
34,388,963.52
2,990,489.46
1,451,844.65
885,221.49
367,508.07
2,854,950.43
96,561.65
271,355.75
306,362.26
470,706.64
758,679.73

336,216,346.71

Rate of Reserve
for Bad Debt

1%
1%
2%
20%
20%
20%
50%
50% - 70%
50%
50%
50%
50% - 100%

100%

Rate of Reserve
for Bad Debt

1%

1%

2%
20%
20%
20%
50%
50%
50%
50%
50%
50%

100%

Provision for

Possible Loan Loss

2,1562,121.70
613,567.46
915,764.77
862,650.82
278,135.21
181,266.81
694,539.18
1,887,457.94
312,279.61
538,681.47
854,776.27
779,000.74

10,070,141.98

Provision for

Possible Loan Loss

2,343,830.13
569,906.90
687,779.27
598,097.89
290,368.93
177,044.30
183,754.04
1,427,475.22
48,280.82
135,677.87
153,181.13
235,353.32
758,679.73

7,609,429.55
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ANALYSIS AND EXPLANATION OF MANAGEMENT

Details on Reserve for Bad Debt for receivables under litigation and compromising agreement for hire purchase and receivable
with right for redemption end of 2012, and 2013

2013
) Receivable Balance Rate of Reserve Provision for
Type of Receivables Receivable Balance '
Net of Collateral for Bad Debt Possible Loan Loss
Litigation in Process 30,268,760.79 27,452,879.80 100% 27,452,879.80
Compromised Agreement 3,167,451.78 3,167,451.78 75-100% 2,391,529.59
Total 33,436,212.57 30,620,331.58 29,844,409.39
2012
) . Receivable Balance Rate of Reserve Provision for
Type of Receivables Receivable Balance .
Net of Collateral for Bad Debt Possible Loan Loss
Litigation in Process 22,496,096.32 21,065,613.27 100% 21,065,613.27
Compromised Agreement 1,645,415.88 1,645,415.88 75-100% 1,258,228.92
Total 24,141,512.20 22,711,029.15 22,323,842.19

During the year 2013, the company established provision for doubtful account for hire purchase receivables amounted
to Baht 10.07 million, increased from Baht 7.61 million in 2012 by Baht 2.46 million This was a result of the growing hire
purchase portfolio in the 5-month overdue category toward year end and the consideration for special provisioning. Nonetheless

the Company attempts to monitor and accelerate collection to reduce the overdue accounts.

Debtors under litigation, and compromising agreement amounted to Baht 33.44 million during 2013 with reserve for
bad debt of Baht 29.82 against 24.14 million during 2012 with reserve for bad debt of Baht 22.32 million. By comparison,
reserve for bad debt end of 2013 increased by Baht 7.52 million. The Company established provisioning accounting for 75-100%
of increasing outstanding of such doubtful debtors. Nonetheless the Company may provide additional special reserve in
cases where close monitoring is required along with legal action to repossess vehicle collateral. The statute of limitation is

10 years.

» Appropriateness and Adequacy of Reserve for Doubtful Account

The company established reserve for doubtful account at a progressive rates corresponding with the number of days
overdue on hire purchase receivable balance, sale with right of redemption receivables, and receivable balance under
litigation deducted by unearned interest income and collateral value (if any) calculated approximately at 30-80% of the
remaining receivables. The provision is made with due consideration for the probability of repayment from debtor as well as
value of collateral disposal. In addition, the company assesses capability of payment on a case by case basis for account
past due over 6 installments, debtor under litigation, past due over 1 installment for sale with right of redemption, and past

due over 12 months for debtor under compromising agreement.
The provision for possible loan loss currently utilized by the Company is considered appropriate, adequate, and efficient.

» Asset Quality Ratio

The ratio of reserve for doubtful account over gross receivable deducted by unearned interest income, debtors under
sale with right of redemption, debtors under litigation, and compromising agreement, and other receivables was 1.74% in
2012, increasing to 2.31% in 2013. The increase in said ratio was attributable to the continuing credit extension, including

close monitoring, and the consideration for provisioning for special credit.
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Considering growth in credit extension, the prospect of repayment and debt recovery through disposal of repossessed

asset, the company believes the current provisioning policy for doubtful debt is adequate.

The company recorded the ratio of Non - Performing Loan to Total Receivable of 2.45% in 2012, and 3.21% in 2013.
The ratio rose primarily as a result of increase in receivable under litigation which has already been provided for under special

provisioning and in process of accelerated follow - up.

During the year 2011, 2012, and 2013 the ratios of bad debt to total receivable were 0.44, 0.19, and 0.24% respectively.
Increasing ratio was a result of Baht 4.12 million hire purchase receivable write-offs which was higher than prior year along
with the declining portfolio size.

» Total Liabilities

Total liabilities were Baht 943.04, 1,308.20, and 1,194.78 million end of 2011, 2012, and 2013 respectively, a decrease
by 8.67% during 2013, because of slow down in credit extension, repayment and redrawing of bank loan, and loan drawdown
from related parties comprising short and long term debts totaling Baht 1,165.43 million decreasing from Baht 1,280.10 million
at the end of 2012.

As at the end of 2011, 2012, and 2013, Debt to Equity Ratios of the company stood at 1.99, 2.76, and 1.75 respectively.
The decrease of the ratio was a result of capital increase through subscription of new shares under warrant - ECL - W1

aforementioned.

» Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ Equity end of 2011, 2012, and 2013 were Baht 474.05, 476.70, and 678.63 million respectively increasing
through capital increase with the exercise of right under warrant to subscribe to ordinary shares - ECL - W1, amounting to
Baht 184.78 million. Returns on Equity from 2011 to 2013 were 4.56, 7.88, and 7.94% respectively. Return on Equity during
2013 increased because of higher profit generation during the year comparing to prior year.

Dividend declared from operating profit from 2011 to 2013 was as follows :

- 29 April 2011, dividend paid Baht 16.4 million based on operating profit July - December 2010, at the rate of Baht
0.04 per share
- 30 April 2012, dividend paid Baht 20.5 million based on operating profit January - December 2011 and retained
earnings at the rate of Baht 0.05 per share
- 30 September 2012, dividend paid Bath 16.4 million based on operating profit January - June 2012, at the rate of
Baht 0.04 per share
- 30 April 2013, dividend paid Baht 16.4 million based on operating profit July - December 2012, at the rate of Baht
0.04 per share
- 30 September 2013, dividend paid Baht 12.30 million based on operating profit January - June 2013, at the rate of
Baht 0.03 per share
« Liquidity
Cash flow from operations during 2013 was Baht 59.69 million available. The amount was Baht 310.93 million used
during 2012. Cash available during 2013 was a result of slowdown in hire purchase credit extension toward year end. Cash
flow from investing activities was Baht 101.37 million used during 2013 primarily for short term investment amounting to Baht
100 million, and partially for sale and purchase of office equipment and motor vehicle for use in the business. Cash flow
from financing activities for the year 2013 netted Baht 41.05 million cash available because of less borrowing from financial

institution and receiving proceeds from subscription to ordinary shares converted from warrant ECL - W1
(Details per Exhibit 11.2, Cash Flow Statements).

» Sources and Application of Fund

Sources of fund of the company were mainly from domestic financial institution borrowing, and partly equity. As a

matter of policy the company intends to seek an increasing amount of funding from financial institution at a low rate of interest.
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ANALYSIS AND EXPLANATION OF MANAGEMENT

Sources of fund as at the end of 31 December 2011, 2012, and 2013 were as follow :

2013 2012 2011
Baht Million % Baht Million % Baht Million %

Shareholders’ Equity 678.63 36.80 476.70 27.13 474.05 33.91
Borrowing

- Overdraft+Loan from Financial Institutions 48.95 2.90 50.90 2.90 37.60 2.69
- Current Portion of Long Term Debt 501.11 27.82 488.15 27.82 353.05 25.25
- Other Short Term Debt 103.72 6.57 115.37 6.57 64.13 4.59
- Long Term Debt 511.65 35.66 625.68 35.66 469.31 33.56
Total Borrowing 1,165.43 63.20 1,280.10 72.87 924.09 66.09
Grand Total 1,844.06 100.00 1,756.80 100.00 1,398.14 100.00

Borrowing as at 31 December 2013 was Baht 1,165.43 million with scheduled repayment as follow :

Repayment Schedule Baht Million
Within 1 Year * 653.78
More than 1 and up to 2 Year 295.80
More than 2 and up to 3 Year 171.52
More than 3 and up to 4 Year 44.33
Total 1.165.43

132

Note: * Overdraft, current portion of long term debt, and short term debt

Considering the hire purchase portfolio including long term receivable to others deducting past due accounts over 5

months, and accounts under litigation, installment receivables by maturity is as follow :

Installment Receivable Baht Million
Within 1 Year 699.47
More than 1 and up to 2 Year 594.03
More than 2 and up to 3 Year 368.83
More than 3 Year 264.23
Total 1.926.56

As at 31 December 2013, total liabilities due within one year (including overdraft and short term loan) amounted to
Baht 653.78 million, due over one year and up to two years amounted to Bath 295.80 million. Comparing with installment due
for collection within one year of Baht 699.47 million, and due over one year and up to two years of Baht 594.03 million, the

Company has adequate funding sources to meet its debt obligation during the said periods.
12.2 Factor or Event that may affect Operations

The company generated net profit of Baht 45.85 million as a result of the continuing growth in credit extension over

the past two years.

The Government’s first car policy resulted in slowdown in sales of used vehicles, and the political situation resulted

in consumers taking caution in their spending causing decline in new credit extension during the year 2013 by some 30%.

The political situation may continue to affect the overall vehicle market until middle of 2014. The company shall
become more stringent in credit extension. The company reported approximately 3% NPL which may still be considered

a satisfactory level.
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ATTACHMENT 1

1. Details related to Directors, Management, individuals with controlling interests in the Company, and Company Secretary

1.1 Information regarding Directors, Management Individuals with Controlling interest, and Company Secretary

1. Mr. Preecha Veerapong Chairman of the Board, and Authorized Director
Age 81 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 20.35 %

Family relationship with Executive  Father to Mr. Danucha Veerapong / Father to Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong

Directors / Other Directors Relative of Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol
Date of Appointment 15 September 2003
Educational Background » Professional training via the Thai Institute of Directors

Association (I0D) ‘s Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Chairman of the Board, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
1987 - Present  Director, Prapakorn Business Co., Ltd.
1979 - Present  Director, Eastern Estate Co., Ltd.
1971 - Present  Chairman of the Board, Thai Preeda Industry Co., Ltd.
1993 - 2002 Advisor, Bank of Asia PLC
1992 - 2002 Chairman of the Board, BOA Leasing Co., Ltd.
1983 - 1992 Assistant Managing Director, Bank of Asia PLC
1972 - 2001 Chairman of the Board, Eastern Commercial Trust Finance and
Securities Co., Ltd.
1968 - 1980 Cholburi Branch Manager, Bank of Asia PLC

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

2. Mr. Danucha Veerapong Chairman of the Executive Committee, and Authorized Director
Age 44 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 6.09 %

Family relationship with Executive  Son to Mr. Preecha Veerapong / Elder brother to Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong

Directors / Other Directors And Relative of Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol
Date of Appointment 11 November 2003
Educational Background » Master of Business Administration, Major in Marketing,

University of Hartford, Connecticut, U.S.A.,

» Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Economic/Finance, Bentley College,
Massachusettes, U.S.A,,

» Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors

Association (IOD) on the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Chairman of the Executive Committee, and Authorized Director,
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2002 - 2003 Director of Sales and Services, the Bank of Asia PLC
2002 - Present  Director, Hi-Tech Land (2002) Co., Ltd.
2007 - Present  Director, Kool Solution Co., Ltd.

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

133



134

3. Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong Managing Director and Authorized Director

Age 43 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 5.44 %

Family relationship with Executive ~ Son to Mr. Preecha Veerapong / Younger brother to

Directors / Other Directors Mr. Danucha Veerapong And Relative of Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol

Date of Appointment 15 September 2003

Educational Background Master of Business Administration, Major in International Trade, Boston University
» Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Finance,

University of Hartford, Connecticut, U.S.A.

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D) on the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Managing Director, and Authorized Director,
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2003 - Present  Director, Thai Preda Industry Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present  Director, Eastern Estate Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present  Director, Prapakorn Business Co., Ltd.
2003 - Present  Director, Prasartporn Junior Co., Ltd.
2002 - Present  Director, Hi-Tech Land (2002) Co., Ltd.
1997 - Present  Chairman of the Board, Thai Preeda Trading Co., Ltd.

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

4. Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol =~ Member of the Executive Committee, Authorized Director, and Company Secretary

Age 66 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 0.39 %

Family relationship with Executive  Relative to Mr. Preecha Veerapong / Relative to Mr. Danucha Veerapong

Directors / Other Directors And Relative to Mr. Prapakorn Veerapong
Date of Appointment 15 September 2003
Educational Background » Bachelor of Accountancy, Thamasart University

Bachelor of Law, Thamasart University

+ Mini Master of Management, National Institute of Development and Administration (NIDA)

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
on the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

« Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0D)
on the Director Certification Program (DCP)

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association
on the Company Secretary Program (CSP)

Professional training course - Effective Minute taking (EMT)

Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Member of the Executive Committee, Authorized Director,
and Company Secretary, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
1984 - 2003 Managing Director, Eastern Commercial Leasing Company Limited
(prior to the merger)
1983 - 1984 Director, Eastern Commercial Trust Finance and Securities Co., Ltd.
1979 - 1983 Section Head, Audit Department, Thai Military Bank PLC

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None
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5. Miss Areechit Sasiprapa

Age
Proportion of Shares Held

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors
Date of Appointment

Educational Background .

Work Experiences

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company -

6. Mr. Pravit Phongsopa

Age
Proportion of Shares Held

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors
Date of Appointment

Educational Background .

Work Experiences

Independent Director

67 years old

None

None
30 May 2007

Bachelor of Business Administration, Armstrong Business College
Mini MBA, Chulalongkorn University

Accounting for Executive Seminar at Chulalongkorn University
Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

2007 - Present  Independent Director, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC.
Branch Manager, Bank of Asia PLC

Director, Syndome Electronics Industry Co., Ltd.
Director, Tai TV Radio and Television Co., Ltd.

Director, Milford Group Hotel Co., Ltd.

None

Independent Director 135

46 years old

0.59 %

None
10 April 2007

Master of Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
Bachelor of Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
Professional training at the Business and Community

Leader Development Foundation

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

2007 - Present
2002 - Present

Independent Director, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
Chairman of the Board, Prachakit Motor Sales Company Limited
Group

1995 - 2002 Executive Director, Prachakit Motor Sales Company Limited

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None
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7. Mr. Phiphat Phornsuwan

Age
Proportion of Shares Held

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors
Date of Appointment

Educational Background

Work Experiences

Independent Director and Audit Committee Chairman

66 years old

0.05 %

None
15 September 2003

Master of Business Administration, Texas A & | University

Bachelor of Accountancy, Major in Statistics, Chulalongkorn University
National Defense College Class 4010

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Director Certification Program (DCP)

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Audit Committee Program (ACP)

2003 - Present  Independent Director, Audit Committee Chairman,
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2012 - Present  Director, NNP Support Co., Ltd.

2012 - Present  Director, Edutainment Group Co., Ltd.

2009 - Present  Director and Advisor, YLG Bullion and Future Co., Ltd.

1974 - 2002 Assistant Managing Director, Bank of Asia PLC

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

8. Police Lieutenant General Amporn Charuchinda Independent Director and Audit Committee Member

Age
Proportion of Shares Held

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors
Date of Appointment

Educational Background

Work Experiences

66 years old

None

None
15 September 2003

Master of Engineering, Major in Nuclear Technology, Chulalongkorn University

Bachelor of Science, Major in Physics, Chulalongkorn University

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Audit Committee Program (ACP)

2003 - Present  Independent Director, and Audit Committee member,
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2007 - 2008 Police Commander, Office of Police Forensic Science

2005 - 2007 Police Deputy Commander, National Police Administration

2001- 2005 Police Assistant Commander, National Police Administration

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None
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9. Mr. Pakorn Apaphant, Ph.D. Independent Director and Audit Committee Member

Age 45 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors None

Date of Appointment 9 April 2008

Educational Background Doctor of Philosophy in Engineering, Civil Engineering,

Purdue University, Indiana, USA

Master of Science in Engineering, Civil Engineering, Purdue University, Indiana, USA

Bachelor of Engineering, Mechanical Engineering,
King Mongkut's Institute of Technology, Ladkrabang, Bangkok, Thailand
» Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association

on the Directors Accreditation Program (DAP)

Professional training of the Thai Institute of Directors Association
on the Audit Committee Program (ACP)

Work Experiences 2008 - Present  Independent Director and Audit Committee member,

Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2012 - Present  Director, Office of the Managing Director, Loxley PLC

2012 - Present  Specialist, National Disaster Center, Ministry of Information and
Communication Technology

2010 - 2012 Chief - Research & Development Project, Geo-Informatics and 137
Space Technology Development Agency (Public Organization)

2000 - Present  Special Instructor, Faculty of Engineering, Kasetsart University

1999 - Present  Special instructor, Faculty of Engineering, Rangsit University,
Bangkok, Thailand

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

10. Mr. Isara Srisuta Executive Committee member
Age 37 years old
Proportion of Shares Held 0.02 %

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors None

Date of Appointment 9 April 2008

Educational Background Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Marketing, Kasembhandit University
Work Experiences 2012 - Present  Deputy Managing Director, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2009 - 2012 Assistant Managing Director - Marketing,
Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2007 - 2008 Manager - Marketing, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2003 - 2004 Marketing staff, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2001 - 2003 Credit staff, Professional Leasing Co., Ltd.

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None



11. Mrs. Charatsang Yuampai  Executive Committee member

Age 42 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors None

Date of Appointment 9 April 2008

Educational Background Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Finance and Banking,

Ramkamhaeng University

Work Experiences 2012 - Present  Assistant Managing Director - Finance and Accounting,

Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2006 - 2012 Assistant Managing Director - Risk Analysis,

Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

2003 - 2006 Business Development Manager,

Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2001 - 2003 Finance Supervisor, Professional Leasing Co., Ltd.

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

ﬁ 12. Mr. Visith Saikrachang Executive Committee member
Age 53 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors None

Date of Appointment 9 April 2008

Educational Background « Bachelor of Art (Public Administration), Ramkamhaeng University
Work Experiences 2009 - Present  Assistant Managing Director - Collection,

Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2003 - 2008 Collection Manager, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC
2002 - 2003 Collection Supervisor, Professional Leasing Co., Ltd.
1996 - 2002 Audit Assistant Manager - Collection,

Krung Thai Thanakit Finance and Securities PLC

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



13. Miss Manasanand Banjerdkit Executive Committee member

Age 49 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors None
Date of Appointment 9 April 2008
Educational Background » Bachelor of Accountancy - Major in Finance, University of Thai Chamber of Commerce
Work Experiences 2001 - Present  Finance Supervisor,
Eastern Commercial Leasing Public Company
1992 - 2000 Finance Supervisor,

Eastern Finance and Securities (1991) Company Limited

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

14. Miss Kanchana Soponpongpipat Executive Committee member

Age 51 years old
Proportion of Shares Held None

Family relationship with Executive

Directors / Other Directors None 2
Date of Appointment 9 April 2008

Educational Background » Bachelor of Accountancy, Ramkamhaeng University

Work Experiences 2003 - Present  Manager - Accounting, Eastern Commercial Leasing PLC

1996 - 2002 Assistant Finance Manager, SMT Leasing Co., Ltd.

1990 - 1995 Assistant Controller, Eastern Commercial Leasing Co., Ltd.

Position held in other business entities which may have conflicting interest or in competition with the Company - None

1.2 Duties and Responsibilities of the Company Secretary
The company appointed Mrs. Duangrat Jaengmongkol, Authorized Director, and member of the Executive Committee,
as the Company Secretary.

- Background, qualification, and training recoard presented in Attachment 1, section 1.1 Infomation on directors,

management, and company secretary (item 4)

- Duties and responsibilities of company secretary presented under the management structure 6.3 company secretary
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ATTACHMENT 3
3. Details on Head of Internal Audit and Head of Operational Oversight / Compliance

1. Where internal audit function is under outsourcing arrangement

Name of Audit Firm : VL Audit Co., Ltd.

Address : 35 Soi Wachiradhammasatit 36, Sukumvit 101/1 road,
Bangjak, Prakhanong, Bangkok 10260

Telephone : 0-2746-4861-3, 081-8904368

Fax : 0-2746-4569

Website © www.ivlaudit.com

E-mail : val@ivlaudit.com

2. Individual assigned by IVL Audit Co.,Ltd. to perform the duty of head of internal audit

Name . Miss.Valdee Sibunrueang

Position title in IVL Audit Co., Ltd. :  Partner / Manager

Educational background . Chulalongkorn University (BA)

Qualification . Certified Public Accountant (CPA) No. 3289

Certification . - Director Accreditation Program (DAP) by Thai Institute of Director (I0D)

- Audit Committee Program (ACP) by Thai Institute of Director (IOD)

Working experiences and relevant training :

1994 - Present I VL Auditing Co., Ltd.
1990 - 1994 Mandom Corporation (Thailand) Limited
1986 - 1990 Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu & Jaiyos

ATTACHMENT 4

4. Details about Asset Appraisal Transaction

For the year 2013, there is no transaction required asset appraisal
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Shareholders of EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including notes

of summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the financial reporting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with standards on auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’ s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’ s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’ s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of EASTERN

COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED as at December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting standards.
Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying my opinion, | draw your attention to notes 3.9 and 4 to the financial statements as explained
involving the impacts on the Company from changes in new accounting policy since Thai accounting standard No.12

“Income Taxes” was applied.

D I A International Audit Co., Ltd.

(Mrs. Suvimol Krittayakiern)

C.P.A. (Thailand) Registration No. 2982
February 27, 2014

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current investment
Hire purchase receivables

due within 1 year
Sale with right of redemption

agreement receivables
Other receivables
Long - term loans due within 1 year
Properties foreclosed

Total current assets
Non - current assets

Hire purchase receivables

due over 1 year
Long-term loans to other parties
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Pledged deposit at financial institution
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Note

10
11

7
10
12
31.3
13

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

(Unit : Baht)

January 1, 2012

(Restated) (Restated)
6,116,659.36 6,741,395.04 3,284,658.65
100,052,348.35 0.00 0.00
596,866,739.25 546,547,849.28 432,937,516.05
57,989,049.48 57,853,720.68 61,212,562.00
9,899,164.14 7,466,512.92 10,169,104.09
0.00 2,993,463.02 2,696,311.16
11,882,512.66 14,845,344.00 1,888,486.71
782,806,473.24 636,448,284.94 512,188,638.66

1,049,080,725.04
0.00
31,147,655.65
10,123,364.85
120,000.00
123,105.00

1,108,291,718.64
0.00
32,772,374.22
7,151,299.09
120,000.00
118,105.00

867,122,105.44
2,993,463.02
32,678,303.65
5,499,848.86
120,000.00
1,997,262.78

1,090,594,850.54

1,148,453,496.95

910,410,983.75

1,873,401,323.78

1,784,901,781.89

1,422,599,622.41

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont'd)

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

Liabilities and shareholder,s equity

Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and loans
from financial institutions
Other payables
Current portion of long - term debt
Short - term loans from related persons
Other short-term loans
Accrued income tax
Total current liabilities
144
— Non - current liabilities
Long - term loans
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Note

14

17
15.1
16

17
18
31.3

48,946,906.04
12,207,554.57
501,110,000.00
54,157,701.84
49,559,095.56
6,437,488.83

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

(Restated)

50,896,784.57
12,475,074.46
488,150,000.00
66,009,709.64
49,361,507.09
5,949,719.94

(Unit : Baht)

January 1, 2012

(Restated)

37,600,410.84
11,505,139.46
353,051,400.00
19,636,424.52
44,498,147.65
3,522,419.50

672,418,746.84

672,842,795.70

469,813,941.97

511,649,800.00 625,681,800.00 469,306,000.00
5,852,293.00 4,678,198.40 3,925,611.03
4,855,002.67 4,998,268.48 3,585,258.76
522,357,155.67 635,358,266.88 476,816,869.79

1,194,775,902.51

1,308,201,062.58

946,630,811.76

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont'd)

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 20131

(Unit : Baht)
Liabilities and shareholder’s Note December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
equity (Cont'd) (Restated) (Restated)
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Authorized share capital
615,000,000 common shares
of Baht 1.00 each 615,000,000.00 615,000,000.00 615,000,000.00
Issued and paid - up share capital
594,776,000 common shares
of Baht 1.00 each 594,776,000.00 410,000,000.00 410,000,000.00
Paid-in capital ﬁ
Premium on common share 21,508,713.28 21,508,713.28 21,508,713.28
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve 20 17,013,466.73 14,721,031.63 12,851,358.22
Unappropriated 45,327,241.26 30,470,974.40 31,608,739.15
Total shareholders’ equity 678,625,421.27 476,700,719.31 475,968,810.65
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,873,401,323.78 1,784,901,781.89 1,422,599,622.41

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.



STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Baht
Note 2013 2012
(Restated)
Revenues

Realized selling interest under hire purchase agreement 176,784,112.79 154,159,832.73
Interest income under sale with right of redemption agreement 5,697,002.00 6,599,460.97
Interest received 496,292.53 782,790.00

Other income
Fee and services income 14,825,580.19 17,499,793.18
Recovered bad debts 1,829,241.63 1,333,956.66
Others 28,862,328.89 23,400,828.29
Total revenues 228,494,558.03 203,776,661.83

ﬁ Expenses

Finance costs (68,727,203.09) (63,523,843.26)
Administrative expenses (87,740,015.25) (79,094,857.56)
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (14,097,561.39) (11,184,050.44)
Total expenses (170,564,779.73) (153,802,751.26)
Profit before income tax 57,929,778.30 49,973,910.57
Income tax 31 (12,081,076.34) (12,342,001.91)
Profit for the period 45,848,701.96 37,631,908.66
Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the period 45,848,701.96 37,631,908.66
Earnings per share 3.13 0.1087 0.0918
Number of weighted average of common shares (share) 421,643,419 410,000,000

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments to net profit to cash receipt (disbursement)

Depreciation and amortized expenses
Bad debt and doubtful accounts
Recovered bad debts

Unrealized gain - current investment
(Gain) Loss on sales of assets

Loss on sales of properties foreclosed

(Gain) Loss on impairment of properties foreclosed

(Gain) Loss on write off of properties foreclosed
Employee benefit provisions

Finance costs - interest expenses

Gain (Loss) from operation before changes in current investment
(Increase) Decrease in hire purchase receivable

(Increase) Decrease in sale with right of redemption

receivables
(Increase) Decrease in other receivables
(Increase) Decrease in long-term loans
(Increase) Decrease in properties foreclosed
Other non-current assets
Increase (Decrease) in other payables
Cash generated from (paid for) operation
Interest paid
Corporate income tax paid

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013

2013

57,929,778.30

20,123,192.20
14,097,561.39
(1,829,241.63)

2012

49,973,910.57

17,561,719.25
11,184,050.44
(1,333,956.66)

(52,348.35) 0.00
(2,009,430.78) (921,752.17)
7,942,302.56 6,016,185.75
3,704,683.42 (404,978.30)

0.00 112,993.52
1,174,094.60 752,587.37
68,727,203.09 63,523,843.26
169,807,794.80 146,464,603.03

(55,851,644.71)

(418,186,541.54)

(135,600.00) 3,449,340.00
4,088,882.16 3,961,647.89
2,993,463.02 2,696,311.16

22,152,574.34 22,274,962.56
(5,000.00) 8,800.00
134,592.05 949,476.54
143,185,061.66 (238,381,400.36)
(68,783,734.36) (64,266,740.24)
(14,708,579.02) (8,282,784.20)
59,692,748.28 (310,930,924.80)




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for current investment acquisition
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment acquisition
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities - increase (decrease)
Bank overdrafts and loans from financial institutions
Short - term loans from related persons
Short - term loans from other persons
Proceeds from long-term loans
Payment for long - term loans
Dividend paid
Proceeds from share capital
Net cash provided by (used in) financial activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, as at January 1

Cash and cash equivalents, as at December 31

Notes to financial statements are parts of these financial statements.

2013

(100,000,000.00)
3,218,130.84
(4,589,736.27)

2012

0.00
5,646,613.55
(11,129,726.09)

(101,371,605.43)

(5,483,112.54)

(1,949,878.53) 13,296,373.73
(12,000,000.00) 47,000,000.00
0.00 5,000,000.00
435,000,000.00 820,000,000.00
(536,072,000.00) (528,525,600.00)
(28,700,000.00) (36,900,000.00)
184,776,000.00 0.00
41,054,121.47 319,870,773.73
(624,735.68) 3,456,736.39
6,741,395.04 3,284,658.65
6,116,659.36 6,741,395.04

149



150

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EASTERN COMMERCIAL LEASING PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1 Head office is located at 976/1, Soi Rama 9 Hospital, Rim Klong Samsean Road, Bangkapi, Huaykwoang, Bangkok.
1.2 Branch is located at 728/10, Sukhumvit Road, Bang-plasroy, Mueng, Cholburi.
1.3 Branch is located at 307, Ta-Chalab Road, Talad, Mueng, Chanthaburi.
1.4 Branch is located at 75, Ratbamrung Road, Mueng, Rayong.
1.5 Branch is located at 195 Moo 4, Nakhonsawan - aok, Mueng, Nakhonsawan.
1.6 The Company engaged in business of credit services to personal and juristic person in the form of hire purchase
and sale with right of redemption agreement.

2. PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BASIS
2.1 Financial statements preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, enunciated
under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and presented in accordance with the notification of Department of Business
Development by Ministry of Commerce dated September 28, 2011 regarding the condensed form should be included in the
financial statements B.E. 2554 and the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding the preparation
and presentation of financial reporting under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as transaction disclosed
in related accounting policy.

2.2 Accounting standards adoption during the period
The Federation of Accounting Professions issued accounting standards, financial reporting standards, standing
interpretations and accounting guidance which are expected to be effective for the financial statements beginning on or after
January 1, 2013 as detailed below :

Accounting Standards

TAS 12 Income Taxes
TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
TAS 21 (Revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate

Financial Reporting Standards

TFRS 8 Operation Segments

Standing Interpretations

TSIC 10 Government Assistance-No Specific Relation to Operating Activities

TSIC 21 Income Taxes- Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

TSIC 25 Income Taxes- Changes in the Tax Status of an Enterprises or its Shareholders
Accounting Guidance Transfers of Financial Assets

Those accounting standards, financial reporting standards, standing interpretations and accounting guidance will
have no significantly impacts on these financial statements except for TAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

2.3 New accounting standards in issue not yet effective
The Federation of Accounting Professions issued new and revise financial reporting standards which certain
standards have not been effective as follow :

Accounting Standards Effective date

TAS 1 (Revised 2012) Presentation of Financial Statements January 1, 2014
TAS 7 (Revised 2012) Statement of Cash Flows January 1, 2014
TAS 12 (Revised 2012) Income Taxes January 1, 2014
TAS 17 ((Revised 2012) Leases January 1, 2014
TAS 18 (Revised 2012) Revenue January 1, 2014
TAS 19 (Revised 2012) Employee Benefits January 1, 2014
TAS 21 (Revised 2012) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate January 1, 2014
TAS 24 (Revised 2012) Related Party Disclosures January 1, 2014
TAS 28 (Revised 2012) Investments in Associates January 1, 2014

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013



Accounting Standards

TAS 31 ( )
TAS 34 (Revised 2012)
TAS 36 (Revised 2012)
TAS 38 (Revised 2012)

Revised 2012

Interests in Joint Ventrue
Interim Financial Reporting
Impairment of Assets
Intangible Assets

Financial Reporting Standards

TFRS 2 (Revised 2012)
TFRS 3 (Revised 2012)
TFRS 4

TFRS 5 (Revised 2012)
TFRS 8 (Revised 2012)

Standing Interpretations

TSIC 15
TSIC 27
TSIC 29
TSIC 32

Share-Based Payments

Business Combinations

Insurance Contracts

Non-current Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Operating Segments

Operating Leases-Incentives

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Service Concession Arrangements Disclosures

Intangible Assets-Web Site Costs

Financial Reporting Interpretations

Effective date

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2014

TFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration January 1, 2014
and Similar Liabilities

TFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease January 1, 2014

TFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, January 1, 2014
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds January 1, 2014

TFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 January 1, 2014
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

TFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment January 1, 2014

TFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangments January 1, 2014

TFRIC 13 Customers Loyalty Programmes January 1, 2014

TFRIC 17 Distributions of Non - cash Assets to Owners January 1, 2014

TFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers January 1, 2014

At present, the Company’s management is being evaluated the effects of those standards on the statements in the year
in which they are initially applied, which the ultimate outcome have not been known in the current period.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Income and Expenses Recognition

3.1.1 The Company recognized hire purchase interest income as unrealized interest is recognized on the effective
interest rate method over the hire purchase term.

Revenues from installments will be stopped to recognize if the overdue installments exceeding 4 months which different
from the accounting method of revenues recognition and allowance for doubtful accounts provision for consumer finance as
requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand
(currently named the Federation of Accounting Professions) that required the Company to stop revenue recognition from the
overdue payment of receivables exceeding 3 installments in accordance with the notification no. KorLorTor. ChorSor. (Wor)
2/2004 dated April 30, 2004. Since the past receivables data as at December 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 there
are 96.84% of overdue receivables exceeding 4 months could repay such debts. Nevertheless, as at December 31, 2013
and 2012 the Company has overdue payment receivable exceeding 4 installments and still recognize income in the amount
of Baht 43,631,867.31 and Baht 33,159,537.68 respectively. If the Company recognized income on the requirement basis,
revenues and receivables of the Company will be reduced by Baht 231,465.95 and Baht 196,993.99 respectively.

3.1.2 The Company recognized interest income under sale with right of redemption agreement receivables on an
accrual basis.

3.1.3 Other revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.1.4 Deferred commission

151



152

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company recognized initial commission of new hire purchase since January 2008 as deferred commission
and amortized as expense over the hire purchase term according to the proportion of interest income recognition of each
agreement. In case the hire purchase is terminated before the agreement term, the remaining deferred commission will be
amortized as expense in full amount.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand and all type of deposit at banks excluding deposit which held to
maturity and short-term highly liquid investments that are not subject to significant risk of change in value.

3.3 Current investment
Investment in short-term debt securities fund is stated at fair value. Changes in fund value are recognized as gain or
loss in statements of comprehensive income.

3.4 Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company provided the allowance for doubtful accounts based on receivables aging report which calculated
from receivables under hire purchase agreement, sale with right of redemption agreement and receivables under lawsuit
deducted by deferred hire purchase interest and collaterals. The collaterals are calculated from the credit value at the rate
of 30% - 80% by considering the comparative of repayable opportunity received from receivables and selling of collaterals. In
addition, the Company will consider the repayment ability of each receivables for overdue receivables exceeding six months,
receivable under sale with right of redemption agreement overdue exceeding one month and receivables under debt compromise
agreement overdue exceeding twelve months.

The basis of provision of allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows :

Less Deferred hire purchase interest and collaterals Percentage
Normal receivable and overdue 1 month 1
Overdue 2 - 3 months 2
Overdue 4 - 6 months 20
Overdue 7 - 12 months 50-100
Overdue exceed 12 months 100

The above policy are determined for overdue payment exceeding 3 installments which do not conform with the
allowance for doubtful accounts provision for consumer finance as requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand (currently named the Federation of Accounting Professions)
that required the Company to provide the allowance for doubtful accounts in whole amount without collaterals deducting.
Since the Company provided the allowance for doubtful accounts from the actual bad debt statistics in the past 2-3 years,
therefore, the yearly actual bad debt are occurred approximately 70 - 90% of provided doubtful accounts.

Receivables under debt compromise agreement after deduction by deferred hire purchase interest without collaterals
deduction were provided allowance for doubtful accounts equal to 75 - 100% since the Company has seized the collaterals
from such receivables. The Company will have the yearly actual bad debt approximately 85 - 90% of provided doubtful
accounts from the statistics in the past 2-3 years.

3.5 Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation except land are stated at cost. Impairment
of assets will be provided (if any).
The Company depreciated all type of assets on over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows :

Number of years

Building and improvement 20
Furniture, fixture and office equipment 3-5
Vehicles 5

The Company include costs of asset dismantlement, removal and restoration as parts of cost of property, plant and
equipment, the depreciation charge has to be determined separately for each significant parts of property, plant and equipment
with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of assets item. In addition, the entity is required to estimate the recoverable
amount in the current expected to be obtained from asset to bring the age and condition at the end of useful lives. Besides, the
entity is required to review the useful lives, residual value and depreciation method at least at each financial year-end.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
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3.6 Impairment of assets
The Company has considered the impairment of assets on property, plant and equipment, investment, properties
foreclosed and other intangible assets whenever events or changes indicate that the recoverable value of the asset is lower
than the book value. Loss from impairment of asset will be recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. The
Company will reverse the impairment loss whenever there is an indication that there is no longer impairment or reduction in
impairment as “other income”.
Recoverable value means net selling price of the asset or its utilization value whichever is higher. The Company

will consider the impairment for each asset item or each asset unit generating cash flow, whichever is practical.

3.7 Properties foreclosed
Properties foreclosed which seized from defaulting receivable are valued by the balance of receivable at the lower
of net book value or net realizable value from selling assets. Net realizable value are evaluated by comparing with the

used car price in the market and the past selling price which appraised by the Company’s appraisal management.

3.8 Employee benefits

3.8.1 The Company recognized salaries, wages, bonus and contribution to social security fund as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

3.8.2 Provident fund

The Company has established provident fund under the defined contribution plan. The fund’s assets are separated
entities which are administered by the outsider fund manager. The Company and employees made contribution into such
provident fund. The Company’s contribution payments to the provident fund were recorded as expenses in statements of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

3.8.3 Employee benefits

Under the new policy, the Company’s obligation related to the post-employment benefits and other long-term employee

benefits are recorded in the financial statements by using the projected unit credit method, calculated by the actuary.

Assumptions :

Discount rate 4.22 %
Employee turnover 0-15%
Mortality 60% according to Thailand TMO97 male and female tables

3.9 Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current income tax and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based

on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period

and the tax bases of assets and liabilities by using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Nevertheless, unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent

that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

The Company recognized deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity, except to the extent that it relates to items

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but the
Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized

simultaneously.
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3.10 Accounting estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards required the management
to make several estimation and assumption which affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and notes to related

thereto. Consequent actual results may differ from those estimates.

3.11 Provisions
The Company recognizes a provision when an entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event. It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Expenditure is required to settle a provision, is expected to be reimbursed when it is

virtually certain that reimbursement will be received.

3.12 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect to temporary differences only to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of temporary differncces. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be utilized, based on the timing and level of

estimated future taxable profits.

3.13 Basic earnings per share
Earnings per share as presented in the statements of comprehensive income is the basic earnings (loss) per share
which is determined by dividing the net profit (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of common shares issued

and paid-up during the year.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUTNING POLICY FOR DEFERRED TAX

OnJanuary 1, 2013, the Company has changed accounting policy for deferred tax, which recognized on temporary
differences arising from differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts as at the end of
reporting period by using tax rate enacted as at the end of reporting period as stated in note 3.9. The Company has recorded
deferred tax by using cumulative effects as an adjustment to the beginning retained earnings of 2013 and made retroactively
adjustments the 2012 financial statements. From the changes in this accounting policy, the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012 represented the increase in beginning retained earnings and net assets by the same amount of

Baht 1,914,590.10. The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2012 had changed as

follows :
Statements of financial position (Baht)
as at January 1, 2012
Previous Restated Variance
Deferred tax assets - 5,499,848.86 5,499,848.86
Deferred tax liabilities - (3,585,258.76) (3,585,258.76)
Unappropriated retained earnings 29,694,149.05 31,608,739.15 1,914,590.10
Statements of financial position (Baht)
as at December 31, 2012
Previous Restated Variance
Deferred tax assets - 7,151,299.09 7,151,299.09
Deferred tax liabilities - (4,998,268.48) (4,998,268.48)
Unappropriated retained earnings 28,317,943.79 30,470,974.40 2,153,030.61

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
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Income tax

Net profi

Earnings per share

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Current accounts
Savings deposit

Total

6. CURRENT INVESTMENT

Investment in debt securities fund

Statements of comprehensive income (Baht)
For the year ended December 31, 2012

Previous

12,580,442.42
37,393,468.15
0.0912

Restated

12,342,001.91

Variance

(238,440.51)

Add Provision for revaluation of investment

Total

7. HIRE PURCHASE RECEIVABLE

Hire purchase receivable

Less Unrealized interest income - net

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Hire purchase receivable - net

Overdue receivables and allowance for doubtful accounts

As at December 31, 2013
Undue - 1 month

Overdue 2 - 3 months
Overdue 4 - 6 months
Overdue 7 - 12 months
Overdue exceed 12 months

Total

37,631,908.66 238,440.51
0.0917 0.0005

2013 Baht 2012
137,879.25 134,002.25
5,922,955.63 6,000,309.83
55,824.48 607,082.96
6,116,659.36 6,741,395.04

2013 Baht 2012
100,000,000.00 0.00

52,348.35 0.00 155

100,052,348.35 0.00

Due within 1 year

2013 Baht

750,146,256.91
(148,846,758.83)
(4,432,758.83)

696,261,020.34

(146,811,300.03)

2012

(2,901,871.03)

Due over 1 year

2013 Baht 2012

1,199,084,101.42
(144,365,993.23)

(5,637,383.15)

1,272,564,568.67
(159,565,291.51)
(4,707,558.52)

596,866,739.25

546,547,849.28

1,049,080,725.04

1,108,291,718.64

Number Receivables less Receivables for % of Allowance
of by unrealized provide allowance allowance for for doubtful
receivable interest - net for doubtful accounts doubtful accounts  accounts
3,626  1,382,844,578.65 276,568,915.73 1% 2,765,689.16
737 228,941,194.51 45,788,238.90 2% 915,764.77
110 33,051,320.90 6,610,264.18 20% 1,322,052.84
26 10,401,511.47 7,281,058.02 50% - 100%  4,287,634.47
14 779,000.74 779,000.74 100% 779,000.74
4,513 1,656,017,606.27 337,027,477.57 10,070,141.98
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Number Receivables less  Receivables for % of Allowance
of by unrealized provide allowance allowance for  for doubtful
receivable interest - net  for doubtful accounts  doubtfulaccounts accounts

As at December 31, 2012
Undue - 1 month 3,752 1,456,868,515.30 291,373,703.06 1% 2,913,737.03
Overdue 2 - 3 months 610 171,944,817.60 34,388,963.52 2% 687,779.27
Overdue 4 - 6 months 75 26,637,777.99 5,327,555.60 20% 1,065,511.12
Overdue 7 - 12 months 19 6,239,206.85 4,367,444.80 50% 2,183,722.40
Overdue exceed 12 months 9 758,679.73 758,679.73 100% 758,679.73
Total 4,465 1,662,448,997 .47 336,216,346.71 7,609,429.55

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, parts of hire purchase receivables amount of Baht 1,672,756,895.42 and Baht
1,707,882,605.70 respectively were used as collateral against bank overdrafts and long-term loans from a bank as stated

in notes 14 and 17.

8. SALE WITH RIGHT OF REDEMPTION AGREEMENT RECEIVABLES

2013 Baht 2012

58,105,260.00
(116,210.52)
57,989,049.48

57,969,660.00
(115,939.32)
57,853,720.68

Sale with right of redemption agreement receivables

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Sale with right of redemption agreement receivables - net

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has loans receivable to 15 individuals by entering into sale with right of redemption

agreement with the agreement period of 1 - 6 months at the interest rate of 7.20 - 12.00% per annum (as at December 31,
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2012, 11 individuals).

9. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables under lawsuit
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Receivables under debt compromise agreement
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Receivables - net

Accrued value added tax

Accrued insurance premium discount income
Loans receivable to employee

Others
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total

Overdue receivables under lawsuit and allowance for doubtful accounts.

Receivable after unrealized interest income

Number of receivable

2013

41

Receivable for provide allowance for doubtful accounts

% of allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
Annual Report 2013

2013 Baht 2012
30,268,760.79 22,496,096.32
(27,452,879.80) (21,065,613.27)

2,815,880.99 1,430,483.05
3,167,451.78 1,645,415.88
(2,391,529.59) (1,258,228.92)
775,922.19 387,186.96
3,591,803.18 1,817,670.01
2,261,016.20 1,679,808.91
282,743.12 426,619.46
2,189,095.51 2,203,285.60
1,859,156.11 1,623,778.92
(284,649.98) (284,649.98)
9,899,164.14 7,466,512.92

2012 2013 Baht 2012
30 30,268,760.79 22,496,096.32
(27,452,879.80) 21,065,613.27
100% 100%

(27,452,879.80)

21,065,613.27




Overdue receivable under debt compromise agreement and allowance for doubtful accounts as at December 31, 2013

Number Receivables less Receivables for % of Allowance
of by unrealized provide allowance allowance for  for doubtful

receivable interest for doubtful accounts doubtful accounts accounts

Undue - 3 months 6 2,828,350.22 2,828,350.22 75% 2,121,262.67
Overdue 4 - 11 months 3 275,338.56 275,338.56 75% 206,503.92
Overdue 12 months onwards 1 63,763.00 63,763.00 100% 63,763.00
Total 10 3,167,451.78 3,167,451.78 2,391,5629.59

Overdue receivable under debt compromise agreement and allowance for doubtful accounts as at December 31, 2012.

Number Receivables less Receivables for % of Allowance
of by unrealized provide allowance allowance for for doubtful

receivable interest for doubtful accounts doubtful accounts accounts

Undue - 3 months 3 1,063,748.53 1,063,748.53 75% 797,811.40
Overdue 4 - 11 months 3 484,999.31 484,999.31 75% 363,749.48
Overdue 12 months onwards 2 96,668.04 96,668.04 100% 96,668.04
Total 8 1,645,415.88 1,645,415.88 1,258,228.92

10. LONG-TERM LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES

Interest rate 2013 Baht 2012
Long-term loans to other parties 10.50 - 13.00 0.00 2,993,463.02
Less Long-term loans due within 1 year 0.00 (2,993,463.02)
Long-term loans to other parties - net 0.00 0.00

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has long-term loans to other companies by entering into loans
agreement with the condition of the loan repayment will be made on monthly basis within 5 years through 60 installments of

Baht 273,050.00 each, commencing on January 22, 2009. The interest rate is charged at 13% per annum.

In 2013, the Company has received the loans repayment in full.

11. PROPERTIES FORECLOSED

2013 Baht 2012
Properties foreclosed 16,331,632.06 15,589,779.98
Less Provision for impairment - properties foreclosed (4,449,119.40) (744,435.98)

Properties foreclosed - net 11,882,512.66 14,845,344.00
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Depreciation :  For the year ended December 31, 2013 was Baht 5,005,754.78.
For the year ended December 31, 2012 was Baht 4,908,924.98.

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has fixed assets at cost of Baht 8,395,142.08 and net book value of Baht
546.00 which were fully depreciated but are still being operated (as at December 31, 2012, cost of Baht 7,618,651.70 and
net book value of Baht 491.10).

Land and construction were mortgaged as guarantee for bank overdrafts and long-term loans from a bank as mentioned

in notes 14 and 17.

13. PLEDGED DEPOSIT AT FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s fixed deposit amount of Baht 120,000.00 is used as guarantee

against loans from bank and electricity usage as mentioned in note 25.

14. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

2013 Baht 2012
Bank overdrafts 22,846,906.04 3,120,784.57
Loans from bank - promissory notes 26,100,000.00 47,776,000.00
Total 48,946,906.04 50,896,784.57

14.1 As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has overdrafts line with 4 banks totaling Baht 50million guaranteed
by transferring the right on part of hire purchase agreement receivable as stated in note 7, mortgaging land and construction

in note 12 and personal guarantee by the directors without remuneration.

14.2 As at December 31, 2013, the Company has loans from 2 banks by issuing promissory notes at the interest rate of
5.145 - 5.47 %, MLR-1% - MLR-1.125% per annum, due on term payment credit line total amount of Baht 230 million were
withdrawn in the amount of Baht 70 million, remaining is Baht 160 million (as at December 31, 2012 the interest rate of 5.30 - 5.75%,

MLR-1% per annum)

15. TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PERSONS AND PARTIES

Parts of the Company’s assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses arose from the transactions with related persons

and company. Such transactions have been concluded on the condition as follows :

Relationship of the Company and related persons is summarized as follows :

Related person name Relationship Pricing policy
Mr. Preecha Veeraphong Major shareholder and president Loans is repayable on maturity,

interest is prepaid at the rate of

3.75 - 4.50% per annum

Mrs. Sumalee Veeraphong Major shareholder and near relative Loans is repayable on maturity,
of president interest is prepaid at the rate of
3.75 - 4.50% per annum

Mr. Danucha Veeraphong Major shareholder and chairman At the rental fee as agreed, averaged

of the executive committee by the independent appraiser
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15.1 Short-term loans from related person

(Unit : Baht)
Balance Balance
December 31, 2012 Increase Decrease December 31, 2013
Mr. Preecha Veeraphong 47,000,000.00 105,000,000.00  (117,000,000.00) 35,000,000.00
Mrs. Sumalee Veeraphong 20,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 (40,000,000.00) 20,000,000.00
Total 67,000,000.00 145,000,000.00  (157,000,000.00) 55,000,000.00
Less Prepaid interest expenses (990,290.36) (2,715,292.66) 2,863,284.86 (842,298.16)

Total 66,009,709.64 54,157,701.84

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has loans from 2 related persons by issuing bills of exchange in the amount

of Baht 55 million due on May to June 2014 at the effective interest rate of 3.75 - 4.50% per annum as at the maturity date.

15.2 Rental

The Company has entering into lease land agreement in order to use as car parking and lease office premise

agreement for using as branch office from 2 related party and person as detailed following :

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012

Plot  Location Area Agreement Period Period Rental / month
1 Bangkok 275 Square wah 3 years August 19, 2012 - August 18, 2015 Baht 48,505.26
2 Cholburi 244.05 Square meter 3 years June 1, 2011 - May 31, 2014 Baht 27,852.63 to Baht 30,707.37
16. OTHER SHORT-TERM LOANS (Unit : Baht)
2013 2012
Interest Printcipal Maturity Interest Principal Maturity
rate rate
Persons 3.80% - 4.25% 50,000,000.00 January 9, 2014, 4.25% -4.75 % 50,000,000.00 March 19, 2013,
May 6-26, 2014 May 7-26, 2013
Less Prepaid interest expenses (440,904.44) (638,492.91)
Net 49,559,095.56 49,361,507.09

The Company has short-term loans from 6 persons by issuing bills of exchange amount of Baht 50 million (as at

December 31, 2012, amount of Baht 50 million) at the effective interest rate of 3.80 - 4.25% per annum as at the maturity date.
17. LONG-TERM LOANS
Loans from 4 commercial banks consist of :

Credit line (Million Baht)

2013 2012 Interest rate 2013 Baht 2012
First bank 630 630 MLR-2 - MLR-0.25 290,596,000.00 390,449,000.00
Second bank 900 900 5.35,MLR - 1.00, 265,035,000.00 231,206,000.00
THBFIX6M + (2.55% - 2.95%)
Third bank 600 500 MLR - 1.50 408,244,000.00 409,956,000.00
Fourth bank 100 100 MLR - 1.625 48,884,800.00 82,220,800.00
Total 1,012,759,800.00 1,113,831,800.00
Less Current portion of long-term debts (501,110,000.00) (488,150,000.00)
Net 511,649,800.00 625,681,800.00

The loans agreement have various limitation that the Company must comply with the maintain of financial ratio.
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17.1 As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has loans from 1st bank total credit line amount of Baht 630 million
which were withdrawn. Where the repayment is made that the credit line can be reutilized. These loans are guaranteed
by transferring the right on part of hire purchase receivable as stated in note 7 and personal guarantee by the
Company’s directors.

17.2 As at December 31, 2013, the Company has obtained loans from the 2™ bank which were gradually withdrawn of
each not exceeds 75% of hire purchase receivable. The principal and interest are monthly repayable within 3-4
years. Credit line total amount of Baht 900 million was withdrawn of Baht 810 million, remaining is Baht 90 million.
The loans are guaranteed by transferring the right on payment of some hire purchase receivable as stated in
note 7 and mortgaging land and construction as stated in note 12.

17.3  As at December 31, 2013, the Company has loans from the 3™ bank which were gradually withdrawn of each not
exceeds 75% of hire purchase receivable under hire purchase agreement. The principal and interest are monthly
repayable within 4 years from the loans withdrawal date. Credit line total amount of Baht 600 million dividend into
credit line amount of Baht 400 million were withdrawn of Baht 390 million,remaining is Baht 10 million and credit
line amount of Baht 200 million were already withdrawn, when the repayment is made that the withdrawal can
be renewed. The loans are guaranteed by transferring the right on payment of some hire purchase receivable
as stated in note 7.

17.4 As at December 31, 2013, the Company has loans from the 4" bank for another credit line total amount of Baht
100 million were withdrawn in whole amount. The principal and interest are monthly repayable within 3 years.

The loans are guaranteed by transferring the right on payment of some hire purchase receivable as stated in note 7.

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Changes to present value of employee benefit obligations plan for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

161

2013 Baht 2012 _
Employee benefit obligations plan as at beginning 4,678,198.40 3,925,611.03
Current cost of plan and interest 1,174,094.60 752,587.37
Employee benefit obligations plan as at the ending 5,852,293.00 4,678,198.40

19. WARRANTS EXERCISE TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARE
Warrants allocated to existing shareholders (warrant)

On December 2, 2010, the Company issued warrants which has a right to purchase common shares to existing
shareholders of the Company which had no offering price for 204,999,983 units (from total offered 205,000,000 units of warrant)
as detailed as below :

Type of warrants : 1 unit of warrant has a right to purchase 1.012 common shares of Baht 1 each
Term of warrants : 3 years from issuance date of warrants
Exercise period : On the last business day of June and December of each year. The first exercise date shall

fall on December 30, 2010 and the last exercise date on the date warrant completes the
term of 3 years, i.e. December 1, 2013.

Never theless, on the last exercise date, there are the exercise of warrants for 182,585,006 units, the remaining
warrants can not be exercised.

Number of units

2013 2012
Number of warrants at the beginning of the period 204,999,983 204,999,983
Less Exercised warrants during the period (182,585,006) -
Less Unexercised warrants for the last time (22,414,977) -

Number of warrants at the end of the period 0 204,999,983
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20. LEGAL RESERVE

According to the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to appropriate its reserve not less
than 5% of the annual net profit after deduction of deficit brought forward (if any) as legal reserve until the reserve reach 10%
of authorized share capital. Such legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

21. DIVIDEND PAID

According to the minutes of the shareholders’ general meeting held on April 19, 2012, the Company passed the
resolution to pay dividend from its net profit for the year 2011 for 410,000,000 shares at Baht 0.04 per share and retained
earnings brought forward at Baht 0.01 per share, totaling Baht 0.05 per share, totally Baht 20,500,000.00 which was paid
within April 30, 2012.

According to the minutes of the directors’ meeting No. 4/2012 held on August 10, 2012, the Company passed the
resolution to pay interim dividend for 410,000,000 shares at Baht 0.04 per share totally Baht 16,400,000 which was paid on
September 10, 2012.

According to the minutes of the annual shareholders’ general meeting held on April 19, 2013, the Company passed
the resolution to pay dividend for 410,000,000 shares at Baht 0.08 per share totally Baht 32,800,000 which was paid interim
dividend on September 10, 2012 for amount of Baht 16,400,000, remains dividend to be paid amount of Baht 16,400,000.00
which will be paid within April 30, 2013.

According to the minutes of the directors’ meeting No. 4/2013 held on August 13, 2013, the Company passed the
resolution to pay interim dividend for 410,000,000 shares at Baht 0.03 per share totally Baht 12,300,000 which has paid on
September 10, 2013.

22. PROVIDENT FUND

The Company has jointed to be member of provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.
Under the fund regulation, the employees have to contribute to the fund at therate of 3% - 7% of their salaries and the
Company'’s contribution at the rate of 3% - 7%. The benefits will be paid to the members upon the condition of length of work
on their retirement, death or resignation from the members.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company paid the contribution to the fund of Baht 1,634,103.00
and Baht 1,460,111.00 respectively.

23. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration is contributed to directors of the Company under Section 90 of the Public Company Act
excluding salaries and related fringe benefit paid to directors.

24. MANAGEMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES

Managemen benefit expenses focuses expenses relating to salaries, remunerations and other benefits to the directors
and management, in accordance with the definitions of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Management
under definition includes a chief executive officer, the next four executive levels immediately below that chief executive officer
and all persons in positions comparable to these fourth executive levels.

25. COMMITMENT

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has contingent liabilities from bank’s issuance of letter of guarantee
for electricity usage of Baht 120,000.00.

26. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are regularly reviewed
by the chief decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its
performance.

The Company’s operation involve virtually a single credit providing business in the form of hire purchasing to ordinary
person and juristic person and operated in one geographical segment in domestic, hence, all of revenues, gain and assets
presented in the financial statements are related to the said business and geographical segment.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
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27. DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27.1 Accounting policy
The significant accounting policies and methods adopted the basis of recognition and measurement relating to
each class of financial assets and liabilities have been disclosed in notes to financial statements no. 3.

27.2 Credit risk
Credit risk derives from failure by counterparties to discharge their obligations. The Company has no material
credit risk and has policy to hedge credit risk by providing guarantor and down payment from each have purchase receivable.
27.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk may derive from changes in market interest rate. The Company has no interest rate risk because

of the Company has long-term loans with the fixed and floating interest rate.

27.4 Exchange rate risk
The Company have no foreign currency exchange rate risk since there are no receivables and payables transaction

denominated in foreign currencies.
Fair value of financial instruments

Financial assets shown in statements of financial position consist of cash, deposit at bank, receivables and properties

foreclosed. Financial liabilities shown in statements of financial position consist of bank overdrafts and long-term loans.

The book value of financial assets and liabilities are close to fair value. In addition, the management believes that

there is no material risk financial instruments.

28. EXPENSES ANALYZED BY NATURE

The significant expenses analyzed by nature are as follows : 163
2013 Baht 2012

Employees benefit expenses 30,365,314.24 26,393,346.61

Directors’ remuneration 2,543,000.00 2,053,000.00

Management benefit expenses 10,747,572.00 10,455,207.00

Depreciation and amortization 20,123,192.20 17,561,719.25

Bad debt and doubtful accounts 14,097,561.39 11,184,050.44

29. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and at banks in the statements of financial position as

follows :
2013 Baht 2012

Cash and cash equivalents 6,116,659.36 6,741,395.04

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objective of financial management of the Company is to preserve the ability to continue its operation as a going

concern and capital structure to be properly appropriated.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has debt to equity ratio as summarized below :
2013 Baht 2012

Debt to equity ratio 1.75 2.73
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31. INCOME TAX

31.1 Income tax expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 can be summarized as follows :

Current tax :

Income tax for the year

Deferred tax :

Deferred tax on temporary differences
and reserved temporary differences

Income tax expenses presented in statement of income

31.2 Reconciliation amount between income tax expenses and multiplication of taxable profits and tax rates used for

For the year ended December 31,

2013

15,196,347.91

(3,115,271.57)

Baht

2012

12,580,442.42

(238,440.51)

12,081,076.34

12,342,001.91

the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 can be presented as follows :

Accounting profit before income tax

Income tax rates

Accounting profit before income tax multiply by tax rates

Prohibited taxable items

Unrealized deferred tax assets in prior year realized
during the year

Income tax expenses presented in statement of income

Income tax rate (%)

31.3 Deferred tax assets and liabilities components as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of the following

transaction.

Deferred tax assets
Reserve for allowance for doubtful accounts - case receivables
Reserve for allowance for doubtful accounts - sale with right
of redemption receivable
Reserve for allowance for doubtful accounts - hire purchase
receivable
Reserve for allowance for doubtful accounts - other receivables
Provision for impairment of assets - for seize
Accrued employee benefits
Total
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred commission
Provision for revaluation of investment
Total
Net

32. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS APPROVAL

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on

February 27, 2014.

Eastern Commercial Leasing Plc.
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2013 Baht 2012
57,929,778.30 49,973,910.57
20% 23%
11,585,955.66 11,493,999.43
3,610,392.25 1,086,442.99
(3,115,271.57) (238,440.51)
12,081,076.34 12,342,001.91
21 25

2013 Baht 2012
5,968,881.88 3,842,100.44
23,242.10 645,855.86
2,014,028.40 1,5621,885.91
56,930.00 56,930.00
889,823.88 148,887.20
1,170,458.60 935,639.68
10,123,364.86 7,151,299.09
4,844,593.00 4,998,268.48
10,469.67 0.00
4,855,062.67 4,998,268.48
5,268,302.19 2,1563,030.61
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